
Agenda continued on page 2 

 

RULES FOR SPEAKING BEFORE THE JONESVILLE CITY COUNCIL (Adopted 09/05/01) 

1. Speakers will have one opportunity to address the Council unless the Mayor allows additional opportunities. 
2. Remarks shall be limited to 5 minutes per person and will also be limited to matters before the Council, to Council 

business or policy, or to issues of community concern or interest that the Council has authority to recommend or act 
upon.  Comments about actions, inactions or performance of the Council are appropriate.  Profane, vulgar or 
abusive language will not be tolerated. 

3. The Mayor may grant a speaker additional time under unusual circumstances. 
4. Council members and staff will not respond to general audience participation.  Matters will be referred to the City 

Manager who will provide reports at a subsequent meeting/date. 
5. The Mayor may call out of order any person who is being disorderly by speaking or otherwise disrupting the 

proceedings.  Such person shall not be permitted to speak and if he/she continues in a disorderly manner, the Mayor 
may declare a recess and/or ask that the person leave or be removed from the meeting. 

CITY OF JONESVILLE 

COUNCIL AGENDA 

NOVEMBER 15, 2023 - 6:30 P.M. 

JONESVILLE CITY HALL, 265 E. CHICAGO STREET 

1. CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE / A MOMENT OF SILENCE 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Citizens wanting to address the Council can do so at this time.  Persons addressing the Council are 
requested to give their name and address for the record when called on by the Mayor. 

4. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 

A. The Heritage Association Youth Advisory Council – Downtown Fairy Door Project 

5. PUBLIC HEARING AND SUBSEQUENT COUNCIL ACTION 

A. None  

6. REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS  
A. Consider Heritage Association Youth Advisory Council Project [Action Item] 

B. Receive June 30, 2022 Audit Report – Bailey, Hodshire & Co. P.C. [ROLL CALL][Action Item] 

C. Resolution 2023-12 – Chicago Street (US-12) Road Diet [ROLL CALL][Action Item] 

D. Resolution 2023-13 – Mutual Aid Box Alarm System  
Interlocal Agreement [ROLL CALL][Action Item] 

E. Consider Bid Award – Make-Up Air Unit [Action Item] 

F. Consider Bid Award – Waste and Recycling Contract [Action Item] 

G. Payment of Invoice – Maumee Street Construction Project [Action Item] 

H. City, Village, and Township Revenue Sharing (CVTRS)  
Certification of Accountability and Transparency [Action Item] 

7. COUNCIL MINUTES 

A. October 18, 2023 Regular Meeting [Action Item] 
B. October 18, 2023 Closed Session [Action Item] 
C. November 1, 2023 Special Meeting  [Action Item] 

8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

A. Accounts Payable for November 2023 totalling $146,346.42 [Action Item] 

9. BOARD AND COMMISSION MINUTES [Action Item] 

A. Economic Development Partnership – July 20, 2023 (Gray) 
B. Region 2 Planning Commission – September 14, 2023 (Penrose) 
C. Region 2 Planning Commission Executive Committee – October 12, 2023 (Penrose) 

 



 
 

 
City Council Agenda 
November 15, 2023 Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 
 

10. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

A. Public Safety – Director Lance 
B. Water/Wastewater Treatment Plant – Superintendent Hughes 
C. Department of Public Works – Superintendent Kyser 
D. Cash Report – Finance Director Spahr 

11. ADJOURN 



 
To: Jonesville City Council 
From: Jeffrey M. Gray, City Manager 
Date: November 9, 2023 
Re: Manager Report and Recommendations – November 15, 2023 Council Meeting 
 
4. A.  Presentation: The Heritage Association Youth Advisory Council 

Representatives of the Council will be in attendance to provide a brief presentation regarding their 
Downtown project to add “fairy doors” to the exterior of Downtown businesses.  There is a corresponding 
action item under 6. A. to consider approval of the request to place doors at City Hall and in Carl Fast 
Park. 
 
6. A. Consider Heritage Association Youth Advisory Council Project [Action Item] 

This agenda item corresponds to the presentation under item 4. A. on the agenda.  The Youth Advisory 
Council is requesting permission to install fairy doors on the exterior of City Hall and at Carl Fast Park.  
The City is unable to make the $25 charitable donation for the project; unless individual members of 
Council are interested in donating, Manager Gray is willing to support the project on behalf of the City.  
Please refer to the attached request from the Heritage Association Youth Advisory Council. 
 
6. B.  Receive June 30, 2023 Audit Report – Bailey, Hodshire & Co. P.C. [ROLL CALL][Action Item] 

Greg Bailey will present the June 30, 2023 Audit Report.  The Audit Report is included electronically in 
this packet.  Please contact staff if you prefer a paper copy. 
 
Per the opinion noted by Bailey, Hodshire & Co. P.C. in the auditor’s report on page 1, “In our opinion, 

the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 

position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented 

component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 

Jonesville, as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, 

cash flows thereof for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 

in the United States of America.”  Following the presentation, I would recommend a motion to receive the 
June 30, 2023 Audit Report, as presented.  Please refer to the enclosed Audit Report. 
 
6. C. Resolution 2023-12 – Chicago Street (US-12) Road Diet  [ROLL CALL][Action Item] 

Many members of Council attended the Road Diet Open House that the Downtown Development 
Authority (DDA) hosted on October 30th.  At their meeting on November 7th, the DDA acted to 
recommend that the City Council adopt the attached resolution to support and proceed with the Road Diet 
project.  Following Council action, the resolution will be submitted to the Michigan Department of 
Transportation (MDOT) regarding our intent to proceed.  The remaining actions and project timeframe 
are summarized in the attached email correspondence from Kelby Wallace, manager of the MDOT 
Jackson Transportation Service Center.   
 
The comments received at the meeting have been summarized by our project consultants at Fleis and 
Vandenbrink.  The summary is attached.  The original memorandum also includes scans of the comments 
received; due to file size those scans are not included in the packet, but can be viewed from the City’s 
website here: https://bit.ly/RoadDietComments.   
 



Manager Report and Recommendations 
November 15, 2023 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 
Additional Road Diet documents, including the engineering study and concept plans can be viewed on the 
City’s website here: http://jonesville.org/ReimagineChicagoSt.aspx 
 
I recommend that the City Council consider the DDA recommendation to approve the attached Resolution 
2023-12 to support proceeding with the Road Diet for Chicago Street (US-12).  A roll call vote is 
necessary to approve the resolution.  Please refer to the attached Resolution 2023-12, summary of Open 

House comments, and MDOT email correspondence. 
 
6. D. Resolution 2023-13 – Mutual Aid Box Alarm System  

Interlocal Agreement [ROLL CALL][Action Item] 

The Mutual Aid Box Alarm System (MABAS) in Michigan is a statewide fire services mutual aid system.  
Participating units of government can assist others with fire equipment and staffing to assist with response 
to major incidents, or request such assistance to address incidents in their own community.  A MABAS 
Division is forming in Hillsdale County.  Deputy Chief Riggs and Assistant Chief Lucas will be in 
attendance at the Council meeting to present the benefits of the City’s participation in MABAS and to 
answer Council questions.  It is necessary to adopt a resolution to enter into and Interlocal Agreement to 
participate.  A roll call vote is necessary to adopt the resolution.  Please refer to the attached Resolution 

2023-13 and the MABAS-MI Interlocal Agreement. 

 
6. E. Consider Bid Award – Make-Up Air Unit [Action Item] 

Council budgeted for the replacement of the Make-Up Air Unit in the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
digester building in the current fiscal year budget.  Sealed bids were opened on Tuesday, November 7th, 
with seven bids received.  The low bid was received from Ryan and Bradshaw Mechanical Contracting in 
the amount of $20,498.00.  Sufficient funds have been budgeted for the project and Superintendent 
Hughes is recommending the bid award.  A motion is necessary to award the bid for the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Digester Building Make-Up Air Unit to Ryan and Bradshaw Mechanical Contracting in 
the amount of $20,498.00.  Please refer to the attached Bid Tabulation. 
 
6. F. Consider Bid Award – Waste and Recycling Contract [Action Item] 

The five-year waste and recycling contract is set to expire at the end of the year.  Sealed bids were opened 
on Monday, November 6th.  Bids were received from our current provider, LRS of Jackson, MI, and 
Granger Waste Services.  The bid tabulation for the first year of service is attached.  For reference, the 
current residential rates are $10.82 per month for trash collection and $3.61 per month for recycling.  
There is currently no charge for municipal collection.  The Spring City-Wide Clean-up charges are 
$100.00 per hour per truck and $45.00 per ton of waste. 
 
Each bidder has proposed a five-year contract with various percentage increases over the life of the term. 
 
Staff has reviewed the proposals and generated lists of questions for each of the bidders.  Based on the 
answers, we will be calculating the five-year cost of the contracts.  We expect that we will either be in a 
position to recommend one, or will ask Council to consider appointment of a subcommittee if additional 
analysis is warranted.  I expect that we will be sending additional analysis for your consideration prior to 
next week’s meeting and appreciate your patience as we evaluate the proposals, which appear to be very 
competitive.  Along with the bid tabulation, both proposals are attached for your review.  Please refer to 

the bid tabulation and proposals for waste and recycling services. 

 
6. G. Payment of Invoice – Maumee Street Construction Project [Action Item] 

A portion of the Maumee Street construction project is funded by a Small Urban Area grant through the 
Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT).  The contractor is paid progress billings by MDOT, 



Manager Report and Recommendations 
November 15, 2023 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 
with the state invoicing the City for the local grant match, and the water infrastructure portion of the 
project.  The September project invoice is attached in the amount of $35,532.39.  I recommend a motion 
for payment of the September project invoice.  Please refer to the MDOT Maumee Street project invoice. 
 
6. H. City, Village, and Township Revenue Sharing (CVTRS) 

Certification of Accountability and Transparency [Action Item] 

In 2015, the Michigan Legislature established the City, Village, and Township Revenue Sharing 
(CVTRS) program (a simplified version of the Economic Vitality Incentive Program (EVIP)). These 
programs replace the statutory revenue sharing program for eligible cities, villages and townships.  To 
qualify for the CVTRS payments, eligible local units must certify and submit to the Department of 
Treasury by December 7, 2023 that the following have been made available to the public: 1) a debt 
service report; and 2) a projected budget report of revenues and expenditures comparing the current fiscal 
year with next fiscal year. These reporting requirements are substantially reduced from prior years.  I 
recommend a motion to authorize filing the Certification of Accountability and Transparency with the 
Department of Treasury.  Please refer to the attached CVTRS Certification form. 

 

9. BOARD AND COMMISSION MINUTES [Action Item] 
Board and commission minutes for the prior month are attached.  The name of the Council/staff 
representative to the board is indicated in parentheses on the agenda.  Following any discussion or 
questions about the board minutes, the appropriate action of Council would be a motion to receive and 
place the minutes on file.  A single motion can be taken up for all of the minutes. 
 
 
Correspondence: 

 Bob Snow re: Council Honor 



�����������	
�����
�������
���

���������������
���������
�
����������	
����������
�����������������
�����

��������
���������������	
��������������
�����������	��
�������
���������

�
�	
�����������
����	
�
��
�������������������
��������
�������� �!��������

�
����	
�
�������
�������
���������������
��������������"���
����������� �#��

�����
���������
�������������������������������$�����������	���������������� �������
�����

����
��������
�����������������������������
���������
����
��������
�����������
����������
���

���������������������
$��
 �����

������������
�����	����%&�����������������
����������

������	
������
�����������
��
���������������
���������
�
�������
�����	��
������
���

��������������������������������
����������������������������	
��� �#�������������������

����������������������������$
�������������������
������'(��������������������������������
�� �

�����������������
�������
���������������������������
��������������)���*��$��������$�����

����������
��+�



 
 

479 E. CHICAGO STREET PHONE: 517-849-2410 
P.O. BOX 215 FAX: 517-849-2493 
JONESVILLE, MI 49250 www.baileyhodshire.com 

 

 

 

  

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 

To the City Council 

City of Jonesville 

Jonesville, Michigan   

 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 

aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 

City of Jonesville, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 

collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 

position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, 

each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Jonesville, as of June 30, 2023, and the 

respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended, in accordance 

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 

standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 

of the United States.  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 

the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City of Jonesville 

and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 

maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  In preparing the financial statements, management is required to 

evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of 

Jonesville’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 

currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 

in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 

or one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or 

in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
 

 

http://www.baileyhodshire.com/


- 2 - 

 

 

City Council 

Jonesville, Michigan 

 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test 

basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City 

of Jonesville’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 

estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 

substantial doubt about the City of Jonesville’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of 

time. 
 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the 

audit. 
 

Required Supplementary Information  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and 

analysis and budgetary comparison information pages 3 - 8 and pages 34 - 37 be presented to supplement the basic 

financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 

statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 

financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 

standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 

methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 

inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 

statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do 

not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 6, 2023, on our 

consideration of the City of Jonesville’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 

certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is 

solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 

that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on 

compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 

considering the City of Jonesville’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Bailey, Hodshire & Company, P.C. 
Jonesville, Michigan 

November 6, 2023 

 



City of Jonesville, Michigan 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

For the year ended June 30, 2023 
 

- 3 - 

Introduction 
This section of the annual financial report presents management’s discussion and analysis of the City’s financial 

performance during the year ended June 30, 2023.  Please read it in conjunction with the City’s financial 

statements, which immediately follow this section. 

 

Financial Highlights 

 The City’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $14,911,393 (net position) at the close of this fiscal year.  Net 

position at the beginning of the fiscal year totaled $14,711,398, showing an increase of $199,995 during the 

current year. 
 

 The City’s governmental funds reported total ending fund balance of $3,451,320 of which $1,948,375 is 

unassigned and unrestricted, and available for spending at the City’s discretion.  This compares to the prior 

year ending fund balance of $3,129,894 showing an increase of $321,426 during the current year. 
 

 At the end of the current year, fund balance for the General Fund was $1,971,775 or 154% of General Fund 

expenditures.  This is an increase of $138,225 from last year’s ending fund balance of $1,833,550. 

 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
This MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements.  The basic financial 

statements include:  1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the 

financial statements.  The City also includes in this report additional information to supplement the basic 

financial statements. 

 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s 

finances, similar to that found in private sector business. 
 

Statement of Net Position - This statement presents information of all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with 

the difference being reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as 

a useful indicator as to whether the City’s financial condition as a whole is improving or deteriorating. 
 

Statement of Activities - This report shows how the City’s net position changed during the fiscal year.  All 

current year revenues and expenses are included regardless of when the cash is received or paid.  An 

important purpose of this statement is to show the financial reliance of the City’s distinct activities or 

functions on revenues provided by the taxpayers. 
 

Both of the above statements distinguish governmental activities from business-type activities.  Governmental 

activities include general government, public safety, public services, zoning, and recreation, and are principally 

supported by property taxes and revenues from other governments.  Business-type activities include water and 

sewer, and are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges. 



City of Jonesville, Michigan 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

For the year ended June 30, 2023 
 

- 4 - 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 

segregated for specific activities or objectives.  Fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate compliance 

with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the City’s funds can be divided into three categories:  

governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

 

Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same functions as governmental activities in the 

government-wide financial statements.  However, these statements report short-term fiscal accountability 

focusing on the use of expendable resources during the year and balances of expendable resources available 

at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s short-term 

financing requirements. 
 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, 

it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented 

for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better 

understand the long-term impact of short-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance 

sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide 

reconciliations to the government-wide statements to assist in understanding the differences between these 

two perspectives. 
 

Budgetary comparison statements are included as required supplementary information for the general fund 

and major special revenue funds.  These statements and schedules demonstrate compliance with the City’s 

adopted and final revised budget. 
 

Proprietary Funds generally report services for which the City charges customers a fee.  There are two 

types of proprietary funds:  Enterprise Funds and Internal Service Funds.  Enterprise Funds are used to 

report functions presented as business-type activities, while Internal Service Funds primarily service the 

governmental unit and are included with governmental activities.  The Water and Sewer Funds are 

Enterprise Funds, and the Motor Vehicle Pool is an Internal Service Fund. 
 

The Fiduciary Fund (Current Tax Collection Fund) is reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements, 

but is excluded from the government-wide reporting.  Fiduciary fund financial statements report resources 

that are not available to fund City Programs. 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of 

the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 

Required Supplementary Information can be found immediately following the notes to the financial 

statements.  This information includes budgetary comparison statements for all major funds. 
 

Other Supplementary Information includes statements for non-major governmental funds. 

 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City’s financial position.  The 

City’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $14,911,393 (net position) at the close of this fiscal year.  Net position at 

the beginning of the fiscal year totaled $14,711,398, showing an increase of $199,995 over the prior year.



City of Jonesville, Michigan 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

For the year ended June 30, 2023 
 

- 5 - 

The following table provides a summary of the City’s net position: 
 

NET POSITION 

2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023

Current Assets 3,869,033$    3,916,984$   2,571,518$    2,538,879$      6,440,551$      6,455,863$      

Non-current Assets 5,851,147      5,832,113     8,278,128      8,206,111        14,129,275      14,038,224      

Total Assets 9,720,180$    9,749,097$   10,849,646$  10,744,990$    20,569,826$    20,494,087$    

Current Liabilities 582,257$       496,235$      196,622$       242,816$         778,879$         739,051$         

Non-current Liabilities 117,797         61,927          4,961,752      4,781,713        5,079,549        4,843,640        

Total Liabilities 700,054$       558,162$      5,158,374$    5,024,529$      5,858,428$      5,582,691$      

Net Position:

Net Investment in 

    Capital Assets 5,679,933$    5,775,740$   3,095,712$    3,157,157$      8,775,645$      8,932,897$      

Restricted 1,296,344      1,479,545     67,548           92,790             1,363,892        1,572,335        

Unrestricted 2,043,849      1,935,650     2,528,012      2,470,511        4,571,861        4,406,161        

Total Net Position 9,020,126$    9,190,935$   5,691,272$    5,720,458$      14,711,398$    14,911,393$    

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government

 
 

The City reported positive net position for governmental and business-type activities.  Net position increased 

$170,809 for governmental activities and $29,186 for business-type activities; therefore, the City’s overall 

financial position improved during fiscal year 2023.   

 



City of Jonesville, Michigan 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

For the year ended June 30, 2023 
 

- 6 - 

The following table reflects the change in net position of the City’s governmental and business-type activities: 
 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023

Program Revenue

Charges for Services 151,059$       186,868$       1,114,086$    1,154,799$    1,265,145$   1,341,667$   

Operating Grants and Contributions 578,724         561,465         25,000           25,000           603,724        586,465        

Capital Grants and Contributions 126,000         0                    0                    0                    126,000        0                   

General Revenue

Property Taxes 774,929         824,172         0                    0                    774,929        824,172        

State Shared Revenue 284,483         281,564         0                    0                    284,483        281,564        

 Investment Income 8,257             145,594         6,139             101,398         14,396          246,992        

Other 385,081         32,104           59,234           52,264           444,315        84,368          

Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets 0                    (24,558)          0                    0                    0                   (24,558)         

Total Revenue 2,308,533$    2,007,209$    1,204,459$    1,333,461$    3,512,992$   3,340,670$   

Expenses

General Government 611,341$       634,578$       0$                  0$                  611,341$      634,578$      

Public Safety 484,406         495,129         0                    0                    484,406        495,129        

Economic & Community 

Development 4,131             11,615           0                    0                    4,131            11,615          

Public Works 97,622           100,830         0                    0                    97,622          100,830        

Streets, Highways, Drains 349,921         492,119         0                    0                    349,921        492,119        

Sanitation 620                14,466           0                    0                    620               14,466          

Culture & Recreation 78,452           100,784         0                    0                    78,452          100,784        

Interest on Long-Term Debt 11,332           6,445             0                    0                    11,332          6,445            

Depreciation - Unallocated 30,305           48,762           0                    0                    30,305          48,762          

Water Utility 0                    0                    452,328         469,640         452,328        469,640        

Sewer Utility 0                    0                    733,110         766,307         733,110        766,307        

Total Expenses 1,668,130$    1,904,728$    1,185,438$    1,235,947$    2,853,568$   3,140,675$   

Excess (deficiency) 640,403$       102,481$       19,021$         97,514$         659,424$      199,995$      

Transfers 65,810           68,328           (65,810)          (68,328)          0                   0                   

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 706,213$       170,809$       (46,789)$        29,186$         659,424$      199,995$      

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Primary Government

 

 

Governmental Activities increased the City’s net position by $170,809.  This represents a decrease from last 

year’s change in net position. 
 

Revenues from governmental activities totaled $2,007,209.  Property tax revenue represented the largest portion 

of those revenues (41.1%), operating grants and contributions was 27.9%, and state shared revenue was 14.0%. 
 

The largest components of governmental activities’ expenses were general government (33.3%), public safety 

(26.0%), and streets, highways, and drains (25.8%).  General government consists of City Council, 

Administration, Motor Vehicle Pool, etc.  Public safety includes police and fire. 
 

Business-type Activities increased the City’s net position by $29,186.  Net position will be used to repay debt on 

the sewer and water improvements, as well as to plan for future improvements in the water and sewer systems.  



City of Jonesville, Michigan 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

For the year ended June 30, 2023 
 

- 7 - 

Governmental Funds - The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on short-term 

inflows, outflows, and balances of expendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the City’s 

financing requirements.  In particular, unrestricted fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a 

government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.  As of June 30, 2023, the City’s 

governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $3,451,320.  Of this total, approximately 56.5% 

was unrestricted and unassigned, indicating availability for continuing City service requirements.  Although a 

substantial amount is unrestricted, future plans include street repairs, park and cemetery improvements, and 

other projects.  
 

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the General 

Fund showed a healthy fund balance of $1,971,775, representing an increase of $138,225.  Other Major 

Governmental Funds include Major and Local Streets.  Non-major governmental funds include the State 

Highway and Debt Service funds.  The Major Street Fund experienced an increase of $108,021 in fund balance.  

The Local Street Fund experienced an increase of $72,395 in fund balance. 

 

Proprietary Funds - The proprietary fund statements share the same focus as the government-wide statements, 

reporting both short-term and long-term information about financial status.  The City’s proprietary funds consist 

of the Water Fund, Sewer Fund, and the Motor Vehicle Pool.  Total net position of the Water and Sewer Funds 

was $5,720,458 at June 30, 2023, an increase of $29,186 from the previous fiscal year. The Motor Vehicle 

Pool’s net position at the end of this fiscal year was $904,113, an increase of $28,261 from the previous fiscal 

year. 

 

Major Governmental Funds Budgeting and Operating Highlights 

General Fund – The difference between the original and final amended budget for General Fund revenues was 

$996,044 ($1,439,704 vs. $2,435,748).  The decrease between the appropriations originally budgeted and the 

final appropriations budget was $905,890 ($1,383,193 vs. $2,289,083).  There were minor increases in City 

Manager, Elections, Treasurer, Assessor, City Hall, Cemetery, Fringe Benefits, Planning & Zoning, Public 

Works, Landfill, Recreation, and Parks.  Capital Outlay was $66,132, which included the following:  City Hall 

awning, security cameras, multi-function printer, and staff computer upgrades ($18,791), DPW building sky 

light replacement ($2,170), Police Department roof replacement ($17,805), Fire Department extrication 

equipment and hose nozzles ($20,559), and Wright Street Park concession stand repairs and new scoreboard 

($6,807). 

 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets at year-end were as follows: 

2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023

Land 204,995$        189,255$       2,061$            2,061$           207,056$         191,316$         

Construction in Progress 0$                   0$                  0$                   0$                  0                      0                      

Land Improvements 194,962          194,962         0                     0                    194,962           194,962           

Buildings and Improvements 1,413,210       1,428,406      0                     0                    1,413,210        1,428,406        

Facilities and Mains 0                     0                    17,023,645     17,320,552    17,023,645      17,320,552      

Furniture and Equipment 1,167,221       1,277,841      1,059,966       1,063,848      2,227,187        2,341,689        

Vehicles 1,483,194       1,694,719      0                     0                    1,483,194        1,694,719        

Infrastructure 7,146,512       7,146,512      0                     0                    7,146,512        7,146,512        

Less:  Acc. Depreciation (5,758,947)      (6,099,582)     (9,875,094)     (10,287,841)   (15,634,041)     (16,387,423)     

Total Capital Assets, Net

     Of Depreciation 5,851,147$     5,832,113$    8,210,578$     8,098,620$    14,061,725$    13,930,733$    

Primary GovernmentBusiness-type ActivitiesGovernmental Activities



City of Jonesville, Michigan 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

For the year ended June 30, 2023 
 

- 8 - 

Bonds and contracts outstanding at year-end were as follows:  
 

2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023

General Government 170,000$        56,000$         0$                   0$                  170,000$         56,000$           

Revenue Bonds 0                     0                    2,513,528       2,474,528      2,513,528$      2,474,528        

General Obligation Bonds 0                     0                    2,595,000       2,475,000      2,595,000        2,475,000        

Total Long-Term Debt 170,000$        56,000$         5,108,528$     4,949,528$    5,278,528$      5,005,528$      

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Primary Government

 
 

Factors Bearing on the City’s Future 

One of the City’s greatest assets is the staff.  Senior members of the City staff are increasingly approaching 

retirement age.  Management and Council have developed strategies for the recruitment of talented and 

dedicated employees, assuring that the City can provide efficient and effective services to the citizens.  In recent 

years, the City has completed wage studies for full-time, part-time and paid-on-call employees to assure that 

wages remain competitive, with wage adjustments completed, as necessary.  The City invests in training and 

licensing for the promotion of staff to higher levels of responsibility.  The job market remains tight with the 

number of retirements in skilled governmental positions exceeding the rate of entry for new hires.  

Collaboration between management and Council will be critical to assure that a positive work culture is 

maintained. 

 

The City will continue its focus on timely Infrastructure investments.  The Downtown Development Authority 

is working to coordinate streetscape updates in the Downtown with planned paving by the Michigan 

Department of Transportation.  Pedestrian and bicycle safety improvements are being explored, along with 

changes to lane markings to improve the function of on-street parking for our Downtown businesses.  The DDA 

will also time investments in Downtown off-street parking with the project. 

 

The City Council and Downtown Development Authority have worked cooperatively to negotiate a 

development agreement with a local developer for new investment in the site of the former Klein Tool 

Building.  It is hoped that this project will add additional retail and housing space to the Downtown, activate the 

riverfront, and provide important tax base. 

 

The City continues to monitor inflation trends.  Staff has noted impacts on availability, lead time, and cost of 

parts and equipment in all Departments.  These trends will warrant careful monitoring for their potential 

impacts on future year budgeting and projects. 

 

Contacting the City’s Financial Management 

This report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Jonesville’s finances.  Questions or 

comments concerning any of the information provided in this report should be addressed to Jeff Gray, City 

Manager, or Lenore Spahr, Finance Director/Treasurer, City of Jonesville, 265 East Chicago St, Jonesville, MI 

49250.



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2023 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 9 - 

 

Governmental 

Activities

Business-type 

Activities Total

Component 

Units

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 93,876$            66,719$            160,595$          1,737$              

Investments 3,672,273         2,425,863         6,098,136         3,234,733         

Accounts Receivable 23,826              22,568              46,394              0                       

Internal Balances 7                       0                       7                       0                       

Due from Other Governmental Units 105,410            0                       105,410            0                       

Inventory 3,640                8,094                11,734              0                       

Prepaid Expense 20,765              15,635              36,400              142                   

Total Current Assets 3,919,797$       2,538,879$       6,458,676$       3,236,612$       

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets - Not Depreciated 189,255$          2,061$              191,316$          97,544$            

Other Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation 5,642,858         8,111,260         13,754,118       0                       

Restricted Investments 0                       92,790              92,790              0                       

Total Noncurrent Assets 5,832,113$       8,206,111$       14,038,224$     97,544$            

Total Assets 9,751,910$       10,744,990$     20,496,900$     3,334,156$       

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 200,048$          61,320$            261,368$          881$                 

Internal Balances 0                       7                       7                       0                       

Accrued Payroll 9,855                2,669                12,524              141                   

Customer Deposits 0                       200                   200                   0                       

Interest Payable 373                   13,620              13,993              0                       

Unearned Revenue 232,772            0                       232,772            0                       

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 56,000              165,000            221,000            0                       

Total Current Liabilities 499,048$          242,816$          741,864$          1,022$              

Noncurrent Liabilities

Bonds Payable (net of discount) 0$                     4,777,544$       4,777,544$       0$                     

Compensated Absences 61,927              4,169                66,096              0                       

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 61,927$            4,781,713$       4,843,640$       0$                     

Total Liabilities 560,975$          5,024,529$       5,585,504$       1,022$              

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 5,775,740$       3,157,157$       8,932,897$       97,544$            

Restricted for:

Streets 1,479,545         0                       1,479,545         0                       

RD Bond Covenants 0                       92,790              92,790              0                       

Unrestricted 1,935,650         2,470,511         4,406,161         3,235,590         

Total Net Position 9,190,935$       5,720,458$       14,911,393$     3,333,134$       

Primary Government



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 10 - 

Expenses

Charges for 

Services

Operating Grants 

and 

Contributions

Capital Grants 

and 

Contributions

Net (Expense) 

Revenue

Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:

General Government 634,578$          77,697$            158,001$          0$                      (398,880)$         

Public Safety 495,129            93,886              0                       0                        (401,243)           

Economic and 

Community Development 11,615              750                   0                       0                        (10,865)             

Public Works 100,830            0                       0                       0                        (100,830)           

Streets, Highways, and Drains 492,119            0                       384,016            0                        (108,103)           

Sanitation 14,466              0                       0                       0                        (14,466)             

Culture and Recreation 100,784            14,535              19,448              0                        (66,801)             

Interest on Long-Term Debt 6,445                0                       0                       0                        (6,445)               

Depreciation - Unallocated
1

48,762              0                       0                       0                        (48,762)             

Total Governmental Activities 1,904,728$       186,868$          561,465$          0$                      (1,156,395)$      

Business-type Activities:

Water 469,640$          360,376$          25,000$            0$                      (84,264)$           

Sewer 766,307            794,423            0                       0                        28,116              

Total Business-type Activities 1,235,947$       1,154,799$       25,000$            0$                      (56,148)$           

Total Primary Government 3,140,675$       1,341,667$       586,465$          0$                      (1,212,543)$      

Component Units:

Downtown Development Authority 158,929$          0$                     0$                     0$                      (158,929)$         

Local Development Finance Authority 93,628              0                       0                       0                        (93,628)             

Total Component Units 252,557$          0$                     0$                     0$                      (252,557)$         

Governmental Business-type Component

Activities Activities Total Units

Change in Net Position:

Net (Expense) Revenue (1,156,395)$      (56,148)$           (1,212,543)$       (252,557)$         

General Revenue:

Property Taxes Levied 

for General Purposes 824,172$          0$                     824,172$           0$                     

Property Taxes Captured 0                       0                       0                        572,775            

State Shared Revenue 281,564            0                       281,564             0                       

Investment Income 145,594            101,398            246,992             121,193            

Miscellaneous 32,104              52,264              84,368               23,883              

Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets (24,558)             0                       (24,558)              0                       

Total General Revenue 1,258,876$       153,662$          1,412,538$        717,851$          

Excess (deficiency) 102,481$          97,514$            199,995$           465,294$          

Transfers 68,328              (68,328)             0                        0                       

Change in Net Position 170,809$          29,186$            199,995$           465,294$          

Net Position – Beginning 9,020,126         5,691,272         14,711,398        2,867,840         

Net Position – Ending 9,190,935$       5,720,458$       14,911,393$      3,333,134$       

Program Revenues

Primary Government

 
 

 

 

1This amount does not include depreciation that is reported in the direct expenses of the various programs



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 11 - 

 

Other Total

Major Local Governmental Governmental

General Streets Streets Funds Funds

ASSETS 

Cash 36,323$            15,734$            19,898$            20,491$            92,446$            

Investments 2,178,943         674,970            710,268            0                       3,564,181         

Taxes & Accounts Receivable 22,648              0                       1,178                0                       23,826              

Due from Other Funds 20                     0                       3,362                0                       3,382                

Due from Other Governmental Units 47,262              44,319              13,829              0                       105,410            

Inventory 3,640                0                       0                       0                       3,640                

Prepaid Expenditures 19,760              0                       0                       0                       19,760              

Total Assets 2,308,596$       735,023$          748,535$          20,491$            3,812,645$       

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 91,607$            21,411$            1,162$              1,478$              115,658$          

Due to Other Funds 3,362                3                       0                       0                       3,365                

Salaries Payable 9,080                226                   224                   0                       9,530                

Unearned Revenue 232,772            0                       0                       0                       232,772            

Total Liabilities 336,821$          21,640$            1,386$              1,478$              361,325$          

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 23,400$            0$                     0$                     0$                     23,400$            

Restricted 0                       713,383            747,149            19,013              1,479,545         

Committed 0                       0                       0                       0                       0                       

Assigned 0                       0                       0                       0                       0                       

Unassigned 1,948,375         0                       0                       0                       1,948,375         

Total Fund Balances 1,971,775$       713,383$          747,149$          19,013$            3,451,320$        

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 2,308,596$       735,023$          748,535$          20,491$            3,812,645$       
 

 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

Reconciliation of Fund Balances on the Balance Sheet 

for Governmental Funds to Net Position of 

Governmental Activities on the Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 12 - 

 

Fund Balances - total governmental funds 3,451,320$        

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Add:  Capital assets 11,931,695   

Deduct:  Accumulated depreciation (6,099,582)   

An Internal Service Fund is used by management to charge the

cost of equipment and vehicle usage to individual funds.  Assets

and liabilities of the Internal Service Fund are included in governmental

activities in the statement of net position.

Add:  Internal Service Fund current assets 110,517        

Deduct:  Internal Service Fund current liabilities (84,715)        

Certain liabilities, such as bonds payable, are not due and payable

in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Deduct:  Bonds and notes payable (56,000)        

Deduct:  Accrued interest on bonds and notes payable (373)             

Deduct:  Compensated absences (61,927)        

Net position of governmental activities 9,190,935$        

 
 



 

CITY OF JONESVILLE 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 13 - 

               

Other Total

Major Local Governmental Governmental

General Streets Streets Funds Funds

REVENUE

Property Taxes 856,436$            0$                       0$                       0$                       856,436$            

Licenses and Permits 1,298                  0                         0                         0                         1,298                  

State Shared Revenue 281,564              270,103              84,219                0                         635,886              

Charges and Fees 105,170              0                         0                         0                         105,170              

State Highway Contract 0                         0                         0                         28,787                28,787                

Recreation 33,983                0                         0                         0                         33,983                

Rents and Royalties 24,260                0                         0                         0                         24,260                

Cemetery Revenue 33,600                0                         0                         0                         33,600                

Contributions 3,495                  0                         0                         0                         3,495                  

Interest 91,215                23,894                30,483                2                         145,594              

Contributions from Component Units 96,159                0                         0                         58,346                154,505              

Miscellaneous 7,801                  44                       909                     0                         8,754                  

Total Revenue 1,534,981$         294,041$            115,611$            87,135$              2,031,768$         

EXPENDITURES

General Government 615,799$            0$                       0$                       0$                       615,799$            

Public Safety 408,187              0                         0                         0                         408,187              

Economic & Community Development 11,615                0                         0                         0                         11,615                

Public Works 52,230                0                         0                         0                         52,230                

Streets, Highways, and Drains 32,042                172,792              139,371              23,212                367,417              

Sanitation 14,466                0                         0                         0                         14,466                

Culture and Recreation 78,015                0                         0                         0                         78,015                

Capital Outlay 66,131                0                         0                         0                         66,131                

Debt Service

Principal 0                         0                         0                         114,000              114,000              

 Interest 0                         0                         0                         7,286                  7,286                  

Total Expenditures 1,278,485$         172,792$            139,371$            144,498$            1,735,146$         

REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 256,496$            121,249$            (23,760)$             (57,363)$             296,622$            
 



 

CITY OF JONESVILLE 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

(continued) 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 14 - 

             

Other Total

Major Local Governmental Governmental

General Streets Streets Funds Funds

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating Transfers In 161,177$            0$                       233,663$            62,940$              457,780$            

Operating Transfers Out (279,448)             (13,228)               (137,508)             (2,792)                 (432,976)             

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (118,271)$           (13,228)$             96,155$              60,148$              24,804$              

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 138,225$            108,021$            72,395$              2,785$                321,426$            

FUND BALANCES – Beginning 1,833,550           605,362              674,754              16,228                3,129,894           

FUND BALANCES – Ending 1,971,775$         713,383$            747,149$            19,013$              3,451,320$         
 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

Reconciliation of Statement of Revenue, Expenditures 

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 15 - 

         

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 321,426$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures,  however, in

the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their

estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Add:  Capital outlay 66,132      

Deduct:  Depreciation expense (432,836)   

In the Statement of Activities, only the gain/loss on the sale of capital assets

is reported, whereas in the governmental funds, the entire proceeds from the

sales increase financial resources.  Thus, the change in net assets differs from

the change in fund balance by the net book value of the assets sold. (24,558)     

An Internal Service Fund is used by management to charge the cost of

equipment and vehicle usage to individual funds.  Net revenue of the

Internal Service Fund of  (before depreciation) is reported

with governmental activities in the statement of net position. 125,934    

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds

in the period issued, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the

statement of net position.  Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in

the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in

the statement of net position.

Add:  Principal payments on long-term debt 114,000    

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use

of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures

in the funds.

Add:  Decrease in interest payable on long-term liabilities 841                

Deduct:  Increase in accrual for compensated absences (130)               

Change in net position of governmental activities 170,809$       
  



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2023  
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 16 - 

Total Internal

Enterprise Service

Water Sewer Funds Funds

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash 44,246$          22,473$          66,719$           1,420$          

Investments 850,690          1,575,173       2,425,863        108,092        

Accounts Receivable 6,116              16,452            22,568             0                   

Due from Other Funds 0                     0                     0                      0                   

Inventory 5,718              2,376              8,094               0                   

Prepaid Expense 7,763              7,872              15,635             1,005            

Total Current Assets 914,533$        1,624,346$     2,538,879$      110,517$      

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets - Not Depreciated 2,061$            0$                   2,061$             0$                 

Other Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 3,289,119       4,822,141       8,111,260        878,311        

Restricted Investments - RD Bond Reserve 50,425            0                     50,425             0                   

Restricted Investments - RD Repair, Replacement

                                   & Improvement 42,365            0                     42,365             0                   

Total Noncurrent Assets 3,383,970$     4,822,141$     8,206,111$      878,311$      

Total Assets 4,298,503$     6,446,487$     10,744,990$    988,828$      

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 14,849$          46,471$          61,320$           84,390$        

Accrued Payroll 1,108              1,564              2,672               325               

Due to Other Funds 7                     0                     7                      0                   

Customer Deposits 100                 100                 200                  0                   

Total Current Liabilities 16,064$          48,135$          64,199$           84,715$        

Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets

Accrued Interest Payable 13,620$          0$                   13,620$           0$                 

Bonds Payable - Current 40,000            125,000          165,000           0                   

Total Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 53,620$          125,000$        178,620$         0$                 

Noncurrent Liabilities

Bonds Payable 2,434,528$     2,350,000$     4,784,528$      0$                 

Bond Discount 0                     (6,984)            (6,984)             0                   

Compensated Absences 871                 3,298              4,169               0                   

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,435,399$     2,346,314$     4,781,713$      0$                 

Total Liabilities 2,505,083$     2,519,449$     5,024,532$      84,715$        

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 803,032$        2,354,125$     3,157,157$      878,311$      

Restricted by RD Bond Covenants:

Bond Reserve 50,425            0                     50,425             0                   

Repair, Replacement, & Improvement 42,365            0                     42,365             0                   

Unrestricted 897,598          1,572,913       2,470,511        25,802          

Total Net Position 1,793,420$     3,927,038$     5,720,458$      904,113$      

Enterprise Funds



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 17 - 

Total Internal

Enterprise Service

Water Sewer Funds Funds

OPERATING REVENUE

Sales 355,926$       791,379$       1,147,305$    0$                  

Equipment Rental 4,450             3,044             7,494             111,632         

Sale of Capital Assets 0                    0                    0                    29,800           

Other 40,618           11,646           52,264           0                    

Total Operating Revenue 400,994$       806,069$       1,207,063$    141,432$       

OPERATING EXPENSES

Sewage Disposal 0$                  410,923$       410,923$       0$                  

Water Plant Operation 165,544         0                    165,544         0                    

Water Distribution Expenses 61,613           0                    61,613           0                    

Depreciation 164,138         248,609         412,747         97,673           

Motor Vehicle Expense 0                    0                    0                    82,388           

Total Operating Expenses 391,295$       659,532$       1,050,827$    180,061$       

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 9,699$           146,537$       156,236$       (38,629)$        

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)

Interest Income 35,681$         65,717$         101,398$       9,151$           

Interest Expense (78,345)          (106,775)        (185,120)        0                    

Total Non-operating Revenue (Expense) (42,664)$        (41,058)$        (83,722)$        9,151$           

Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers (32,965)$        105,479$       72,514$         (29,478)$        

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

Contributions from Other Governments 0$                  0$                  0$                  14,215$         

Contributions from Component Units 25,000           0                    25,000           0                    

Transfers From Other Funds 0                    0                    0                    53,785           

Transfers To Other Funds (32,164)          (36,164)          (68,328)          (10,261)          
 

Total Contributions and Transfers (7,164)$          (36,164)$        (43,328)$        57,739$         

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (40,129)$        69,315$         29,186$         28,261$         

NET POSITION – Beginning 1,833,549      3,857,723      5,691,272      875,852         

NET POSITION – Ending 1,793,420$    3,927,038$    5,720,458$    904,113$       

Enterprise Funds



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 18 - 

Total Internal

Enterprise Service

Water Sewer Funds Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers 360,524$          801,628$        1,162,152$       0$                   

Cash received from interfund services provided 0                       0                     0                       111,632          

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (141,095)          (229,250)         (370,345)           (70,683)          
Cash payments to employees and

professional contractors for services (86,495)            (166,598)         (253,093)           (27,802)          

Other operating receipts 40,618              11,646            52,264              29,800            

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 173,552$          417,426$        590,978$          42,947$          

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Contributions from other governments 0$                     0$                   0$                     14,215$          

Contributions from component units 25,000              0                     25,000              0                     
Transfers from other funds 0                       0                     0                       53,785            

Transfers to other funds (32,164)            (36,164)           (68,328)             (10,261)          

Net cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities (7,164)$            (36,164)$         (43,328)$           57,739$          

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (14,566)$          (300,923)$       (315,489)$         (288,403)$      

Principal paid on bonds and loans (39,000)            (120,000)         (159,000)           0                     

Interest paid on bonds and loans (78,548)            (106,275)         (184,823)           0                     

Net cash provided (used) by capital and 

related financing activities (132,114)$        (527,198)$       (659,312)$         (288,403)$      

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investment income 35,681$            65,717$          101,398$          9,151$            

Net cash provided (used) by investment activities 35,681$            65,717$          101,398$          9,151$            

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 69,955$            (80,219)$         (10,264)$           (178,566)$      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning 917,771            1,677,865       2,595,636         288,078          

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Ending 987,726$          1,597,646$     2,585,372$       109,512$        

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss) 9,699$              146,537$        156,236$          (38,629)$        

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

 net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 164,138            248,609          412,747            97,673            

Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 148                   6,902              7,050                0                     

(Increase) decrease in due from other funds 0                       303                 303                   0                     

(Increase) decrease in inventories (4,323)              1,906              (2,417)               0                     

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expense (7,311)              354                 (6,957)               (31)                 

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 10,789              29,184            39,973              (1,426)            
Increase (decrease) in wages and benefits payable 131                   (14)                  117                   160                 

Increase (decrease) in due to other funds (515)                 (21)                  (536)                  (14,800)          

Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 0                       0                     0                       0                     

Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 796                   (16,334)           (15,538)             0                     

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 173,552$          417,426$        590,978$          42,947$          



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2023 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 19 - 

              

Custodial Fund

Current Tax

Collection

ASSETS

Cash 10$                 

LIABILITIES

Due to General Fund 10$                 

NET POSITION 0$                   
 

 

 

 

CITY OF JONESVILLE 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023                                                                     

  

 

 

Custodial Fund

Current Tax

Collection

ADDITIONS

Collection of taxes for City of Jonesville and other governments 3,199,226$     

DEDUCTIONS

Payment of taxes collected to City of Jonesville and other governments 3,199,226       

Net change in fiduciary net position 0$                   

NET POSITION - Beginning 0                       

NET POSITION - Ending 0$                   
 

 

 

 

 

 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

COMPONENT UNITS 

JUNE 30, 2023  
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 20 - 

 
 

    

Total

Component

DDA LDFA Units

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash 528$                 1,209$              1,737$              

Investments 84,383              3,150,350         3,234,733         

Prepaid Expense 142                   0                       142                   

Total Current Assets 85,053$            3,151,559$       3,236,612$       

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets

Land 0$                     97,544$            97,544$            

Total Noncurrent Assets 0$                     97,544$            97,544$            

Total Assets 85,053$            3,249,103$       3,334,156$       

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 362$                 507$                 869$                 

Due to Primary Government 12                     0                       12                     

Accrued Payroll 141                   0                       141                   

Total Liabilities 515$                 507$                 1,022$              

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 0$                     97,544$            97,544$            

Unrestricted 84,538              3,151,052         3,235,590         

Total Net Position 84,538$            3,248,596$       3,333,134$       
 

 
 See Note 1 for descriptions of component units shown in column headings 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

COMPONENT UNITS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 21 - 

                        

Total

Component

DDA LDFA Units

EXPENSES

Downtown Development 43,016$            0$                     43,016$            

Industrial Development 0                       30,036              30,036              

Contributions to City activities 115,913            63,592              179,505            

Total Expenses 158,929$          93,628$            252,557$          

PROGRAM REVENUE

Charges for Services 0$                     0$                     0$                     

Operating Grants and Contributions 0                       0                       0                       

Capital Grants and Contributions 0                       0                       0                       

Total Program Revenue 0$                     0$                     0$                     

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE (158,929)$        (93,628)$          (252,557)$        

GENERAL REVENUE

Property Taxes Captured 172,507$          400,268$          572,775$          

Rent Income 0                       23,883              23,883              

Investment Income 2,841                118,352            121,193            

Other Income 0                       0                       0                       

Total General Revenue 175,348$          542,503$          717,851$          

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 16,419$            448,875$          465,294$          

NET POSITION – Beginning 68,119              2,799,721         2,867,840         

NET POSITION - Ending 84,538$            3,248,596$       3,333,134$       
 

 

 

 See Note 1 for descriptions of component units shown in column headings 

 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

- 22 - 

 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Jonesville comprises a population of approximately 2,176 residents in Hillsdale County, Michigan.  

It is governed by a seven-member council with a Mayor as its head.  As required by generally accepted 

accounting principles, these financial statements present the City’s primary government and component units 

over which the City exercises significant influence.  Significant influence or accountability is based primarily 

on operational or financial relationship with the City (as distinct from legal relationships). 
 

The following component units are reported in the City’s financial statements: 
 

 The Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) was created under Public Act 281 of 1986 of the 

State of Michigan.  The LDFA's purpose is to work towards the elimination of the causes of 

unemployment, underemployment and joblessness, and to promote economic growth in the City of 

Jonesville. 
 

 The Downtown Development Authority (DDA) was created under Public Act 197 of 1975 of the State of 

Michigan.  The DDA's purpose is to eliminate the causes of deterioration of property values in the 

business district of the City and to promote economic growth. 
 

The City appoints the majority of the Boards of Directors of the LDFA and DDA.  The budgets of both entities 

require the City's approval, and their main revenue source (tax increment financing) is a financial burden to the 

City. 
 

The accounting policies of the City of Jonesville conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units.  The following is a summary of 

significant accounting policies used by City of Jonesville: 
 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Government-Wide Financial Statements - The statement of net position and the statement of activities display 

financial information about the City as a whole, excluding fiduciary activities.  The primary government and 

component units are presented separately within the financial statements with the focus on the primary 

government.  Individual funds are not displayed, but the statements distinguish governmental activities, 

generally supported by property taxes and City general revenue, from business-type activities, generally 

financed in whole or in part with fees charged to external customers. 
 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each 

function of the City’s governmental and business-type activities.  Direct expenses are those that are specifically 

associated with a service, program or department and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function.  

Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the function and 

grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 

function.  Property taxes, State Revenue Sharing, and other items not properly included among program 

revenues are reported as general revenues.  The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies 

the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.   
 

Fund Financial Statements - Fund financial statements report detailed information about the City.  The focus of 

governmental fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type.  Each major fund 

is presented in a separate column.  Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.  Fiduciary 

funds are reported by fund type. 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

- 23 - 

 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
The financial statements of the City are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 

(GAAP) and all relevant pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 
 

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 

basis of accounting including the reclassification or elimination of internal activity (between or within funds).  

However, internal eliminations do not include utility services provided to City departments.  Proprietary fund 

and component unit financial statements also report using this same focus and basis of accounting.  Revenue is 

recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the 

related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and 

similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 

been met. 
 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus 

and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenue is recognized as soon as it is both measureable and 

available.  Revenue is considered to be available if it is to be collected within the current period or soon enough 

thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the government considers revenue to be 

available if it is collected within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are 

recorded when the liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, 

expenditures relating to compensated absences, and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is 

due. 
 

Under the modified accrual basis, property taxes, State revenue sharing, interest, and grants are considered to 

be both measurable and available at fiscal year-end.  Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility 

requirements are met are recorded as deferred revenue. 
 

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenue and expenses related to 

the primary, continuing operations of the fund.  Principal operating revenue for proprietary funds is charges to 

customers for sales or services.  Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and 

include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets.  Other revenue and expenses are classified 

as non-operating in the financial statements. 
 

Financial Statement Presentation 
The City uses funds to maintain its financial records during the fiscal year.  Fund accounting is designed to 

demonstrate legal compliance and to aid management by segregating transactions related to certain City 

functions or activities.  A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.   
 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

General Fund - used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in 

another fund.  The general fund balance is available for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred 

according to the laws of the State of Michigan. 
 

Special Revenue Funds - used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than special 

assessments, expendable trust, or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for 

specified purposes (i.e. Major Streets and Local Streets). 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

- 24 - 

 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 
  

Water Utilities Fund - accounts for the operating activities of the City’s water utilities services. 
 

Sewer Utilities Fund - accounts for the operating activities of the City’s sewer utilities services. 
 

Additionally, the City reports the following non-major fund types: 
 

Special Revenue Fund – State Highway Fund 
 

Debt Retirement Fund - used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of principal 

and interest on the City’s general obligation debt. 
 

Internal Service Fund - accounts for the financing of goods and services provided by one department to 

other departments within the City on a cost-reimbursement basis (i.e. equipment and vehicle usage).  This is 

a proprietary fund reported with governmental activities in the government-wide statements. 
 

Fiduciary Fund - accounts for fiduciary assets held by the City in a custodial capacity as an agent on behalf 

of others (i.e. property taxes collected for other governments). 
 

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance 
Bank Deposits and Investments - Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand 

deposits, and short-term investments with a maturity of three months or less.  Investments in this account are 

stated at cost which equals market value. 
 

Inventories - Inventories are stated at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out method.   
 

Capital Assets - General capital assets result from expenditures in the governmental funds.  These assets are 

reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net position but are not 

reported in the fund financial statements.  Capital assets paid for by component units are transferred to the 

primary government and are also reported in the government-wide statements.  Proprietary Fund capital assets 

are reported in their respective fund financial statements.   
 

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements 

during the year.  Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date received.  The City 

maintains a capitalization threshold of $1,000.  Improvements are capitalized; the cost of normal maintenance 

and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset’s life are not.  Interest incurred 

during the construction of capital assets is also capitalized. 
 

All reported capital assets are depreciated.  Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the 

related assets.  Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 
 

Description                                                 Estimated Lives    

Buildings & Improvements 50 years 

Furniture & Equipment                            5 - 20 years 

Vehicles             5 years 

Infrastructure 20 - 30 years 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

- 25 - 

 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 

outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 

consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 

resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  The City has no items that qualify for reporting in this category. 
 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 

inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 

acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 

resources (revenue) until that time.  The City has no items that qualify for reporting in this category. 
 

Compensated Absences (Vacation and Sick Leave) - It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate 

earned but unused sick and vacation pay benefits.  Vacation and sick leave are accrued when incurred in the 

government-wide financial statements.  A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if 

they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignation, retirement, or death. 
 

Interfund Balances - On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund 

loans are reported as “due to/from other funds.”  These amounts are eliminated on the government-wide 

statement of net position. 
 

Long-Term Obligations - In the government-wide financial statements, all payables, accrued liabilities and 

long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of net position.  Bond premiums and discounts, 

as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the term of the related debt.  In the fund financial 

statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, during 

the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.  Premiums received 

on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources, while discounts are reported as other financing uses.  

Issuance costs are reported as debt retirement expenditures. 
 

Fund Balance – In accordance with Governmental Account Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54, Fund 

Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund-type Definitions, the fund financial statements report the following 

components of fund balance:   
 

 Nonspendable:  Amounts that are not in a spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be 

maintained intact. 

 Restricted:  Amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling 

legislation for use for a specific purpose. 

 Committed:  Amounts that have been formally set aside by the City Council for use for specific 

purposes.  Commitments are made and can be rescinded only by a resolution of the City Council. 

 Assigned:  Amounts that are intended to be spent on specific purposes, as expressed by the City Council 

or by a committee or individual designated by the City Council. 

 Unassigned:  Amounts that are available for day-to-day operations. 
 

The City considers restricted funds to be spent first when expenditures are incurred for which both restricted 

and unrestricted amounts are available. 
 

The City considers that committed amounts would be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts, and then 

unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those 

unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used. 
 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

- 26 - 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Interfund Activity - Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are 

reported as interfund transfers.  Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental 

funds. 
 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and 

accompanying notes.  Actual results may differ from those estimates. 
 

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
Budgetary Information - The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the State of Michigan Budget Act 

and entails the preparation of budgetary documents within an established timetable.  The legal level of 

budgetary control has been established by the City Council at the function level.  Any budgetary modifications 

may only be made by resolution of the City Council.  All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. 
 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgets for the individual funds as reflected in the 

financial statements: 

1)  Prior to June 30, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the 

fiscal year commencing on July 1. 

2)  A public hearing is conducted during June to obtain taxpayer comments. 

3)  Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution. 

4)  For purposes of meeting emergency needs of the City, transfer of appropriations may be made by the 

authorization of the City Manager.  Such transfers appropriations must be approved by the City 

Council at its next regularly scheduled meeting. 

5)  The City Manager is charged with general supervision of the budget and shall hold the department 

heads responsible for performance of their responsibilities. 

6)  During the year the budget is monitored, and amendments to the budget resolution are made when 

deemed necessary. 

 

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

State of Michigan laws authorize the City to invest in bonds, securities and other direct obligations of the 

United States, or any agency or instrumentality of the United States; United States government or Federal 

agency obligations; repurchase agreements; bankers’ acceptance of United States banks; commercial paper 

rated by two standard rating agencies within the two highest classifications, which mature not more than 270 

days after the date of purchase; obligations of the State of Michigan or its political subdivisions which are rated 

as investment grade; and mutual funds composed of investment vehicles which are legal for direct investment 

by local units of government in Michigan.  Financial institutions eligible for deposit of public funds must 

maintain an office in Michigan.  The City’s investment policy puts no further limits on its investment choices. 

 

Deposits 

Following are the components of the City’s bank deposits at June 30, 2023: 

Primary Component

Government Units

Cash on hand 450$              0$                  

Checking and savings accounts 160,145         1,737             

160,595$       1,737$           
 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

- 27 - 

 

NOTE 3 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Investments 

Following are the components of the City’s investments at June 30, 2023: 
 

 

Primary Component

Government Units

MBIA CLASS Investment Pool 6,190,926$    3,234,733$    
 

The City’s deposits and investments are subject to several types of risk, which are examined in more detail as 

follows: 
 

Interest Rate Risk - In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in 

fair values due to changes in general interest rates by structuring the portfolio to meet cash requirements for 

ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to liquidate securities at a loss prior to maturity. 
 

Credit Risk – The City minimizes credit risk, which is the risk of loss due to the failure of the security issuer 

or backer, by limiting investments to the safest types of securities, pre-qualifying the financial institutions 

with which the City will do business, and diversifying the portfolio so that potential losses on individual 

securities will be minimized. As of June 30, 2023, the City’s investment in the MBIA CLASS Investment 

Pool was rated AAAm by Standard & Poors. 
 

Concentration of credit risk – The City minimizes the risk associated with placing a large portion of the 

portfolio with a single issuer by diversifying the portfolio so that the impact of potential losses from any one 

investment will be minimized. 
 

Custodial credit risk – Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 

City’s deposits may not be returned to it.  At June 30, 2023, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was 

$160,145 and the bank balance was $202,748.  The entire bank balance was covered by federal depository 

insurance.  The City minimizes custodial credit risk by holding all investments in the City’s name. 
 

Foreign currency risk – The City is not authorized to invest in investments which have this type of risk. 
 

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES 

Receivables at June 30, 2023, consist of State revenue sharing, State highway contract revenue, utility and other 

receivables. All receivables are considered collectible in full due to the ability to lien for the nonpayment of 

utility bills and the stable condition of State programs. 

 

A summary of the principal items of receivables follows: 

          

General Major Local Proprietary

Fund Street Street Funds Total

State Revenue Sharing 47,262$         44,319$       13,829$        0$                105,410$       

Property Taxes 15,269           0                  0                   0                  15,269           

Utility customers 0                    0                  0                   18,626         18,626           

Other Receivables 7,379             0                  1,178            3,942           12,499           

Total 69,910$         44,319$       15,007$        22,568$       151,804$       
 

 

 

 

 

 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

- 28 - 

 

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, was as follows: 

Beginning Ending

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT Balance Additions Deletions Balance

Governmental Activities

Capital assets not being depreciated

Land 204,995$         0$                   (15,740)$         189,255$          

Capital assets being depreciated

Land Improvements 194,962$         0$                   0$                   194,962$         

Buildings & Improvements 1,413,210        34,510            (19,314)           1,428,406        

Furniture & Equipment 1,167,221        163,119          (52,499)           1,277,841        

Vehicles 1,483,194        240,730          (29,205)           1,694,719        

Infrastructure 7,146,512        0                     0                     7,146,512        

Less accumulated depreciation (5,758,947)       (432,836)        92,201            (6,099,582)       

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 5,646,152$      5,523$            (8,817)$           5,642,858$      

Total capital assets, net 5,851,147$      5,523$            (24,557)$         5,832,113$      

Business-Type Activities

Capital assets not being depreciated

Land 2,061$             0$                   0$                   2,061$             

Capital assets being depreciated

Facilities & Mains 17,023,645$    296,907$        0$                   17,320,552$    

Machinery & Equipment 1,059,966        4,016              (134)                1,063,848        

Less accumulated depreciation (9,875,094)       (412,747)        0                     (10,287,841)     

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 8,208,517$      (111,824)$      (134)$              8,096,559$      

Total capital assets, net 8,210,578$      (111,824)$      (134)$              8,098,620$      

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Total capital assets, net 14,061,725$    (106,301)$      (24,691)$         13,930,733$    

COMPONENT UNITS

Capital assets not being depreciated

Land 97,544$           0$                   0$                   97,544$           
 

       

Depreciation expense was charged to activities of the City as follows: 

Governmental Activities: Business-Type Activities:

General Government 18,651$     Water 164,138$   

Public Safety 86,942       Sewer 248,609     

Public Improvements 48,600       Total 412,747$   

Streets, Highways and Drains 207,113     

Culture and Recreation 22,769       

Unallocated 48,761       

Total 432,836$   
 

 

 

 

 

 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

- 29 - 

 

NOTE 6 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS 

The composition of interfund balances at June 30, 2023, is as follows: 
 

Fund Interfund Receivable Fund Interfund Payable

General Fund 3$                            Major Street 3$                            

General Fund 7                              Water 7                              

General Fund 10                            Current Tax 10                            

Local Streets 3,362                       General Fund 3,362                       

3,382$                     3,382$                     
 

 

Interfund transfers during the year consisted of the following: 
 

General 

Fund

Major 

Streets

Local 

Streets

State 

Highway Water Sewer

Motor 

Vehicle 

Pool Total

Transfer to:

General Fund 0$               13,228$   74,568$     2,792$     30,164$   30,164$   10,261$   161,177$   

Local Streets 233,663      0              0                0              0              0              0              233,663     

Debt Service 0                 0              62,940       0              0              0              0              62,940       

Motor Vehicle Pool 45,785        0              0                0              2,000       6,000       0              53,785       

Total 279,448$    13,228$   137,508$   2,792$     32,164$   36,164$   10,261$   511,565$   

Transfer From

 
 

Transfers are used to (1) account for overhead services provided by the General Fund to other funds, (2) move 

resources for the payment of long-term debt, and (3) to provide for future acquisition of capital assets. 

 

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

The City issues bonds to provide for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities.  General 

obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the government.   
 

North Parking Lot Bonds - During the year 2011-12, the City issued bonds in the amount of $550,000 for 

improvements to the parking lot on the north side of the downtown district.  The bond payments are to be 

made from the tax increment revenues of the DDA; however, they are also backed by the full faith and 

credit of the City. 
 

East Street Bonds – During the year 2007-08, the City issued bonds in the amount of $700,000 for the 

reconstruction of East Street between Liberty Street and Adrian Street.  These bonds were paid off during 

the year. 
 

Refunding Bonds - During the year 2005-06, the City completed construction on a new sewage treatment 

plant, funded partially by a $4,065,000 loan from the USDA Rural Development Office.  In March, 2014, 

the City issued $3,485,000 in general obligation bonds to refund the USDA loan. 
 

Water Revenue Bonds – During the year 2018-19, the City issued revenue bonds in the amount of 

$2,765,000 for the acquisition, construction, and equipping of improvements to the water supply system.   
 

 

 

 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

- 30 - 

 

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2023: 
 

       

Balance Balance 

6/30/2022 Increases Decreases 6/30/2023

Primary Government

Governmental Activities

North Parking Lot Bonds 110,000$     0$                (54,000)$      56,000$       

East Street Bonds 60,000         0                  (60,000)        0                  

Compensated Absences 61,797         130              0                  61,927         

Total Governmental Activities 231,797$     130$            (114,000)$    117,927$     

Business-type Activities

Refunding Bonds – Sewer Fund 2,595,000$  0$                (120,000)$    2,475,000$  

Revenue Bonds - Water Fund 2,513,528    0                  (39,000)        2,474,528    

Compensated Absences 19,707         0                  (15,538)        4,169           

Total Business-type Activities 5,128,235$  0$                (174,538)$    4,953,697$  

Total Primary Government Long-Term Debt 5,360,032$  130$            (288,538)$    5,071,624$  
 

 

Interest rates, maturity dates, and current portions for the above obligations are as follows: 

Interest Rate(s) Maturity Date Current Portion

North Parking Lot Bonds 2.9% - 4.0% 5/1/2024 56,000$            

Refunding Bonds – Sewer Fund 2.00% - 4.15% 1/1/2038 125,000            

Revenue Bonds – Water Fund 3.125% 5/1/2059 40,000              

221,000$          
 

 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above obligations are as follows: 
 

            

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest

56,000$            2,240$              165,000$          184,570$          

0                       0                       167,000            178,320            

0                       0                       173,000            172,008            

0                       0                       184,000            165,464            

0                       0                       191,000            158,489            

2029-2033 0                       0                       1,061,000         678,582            

2034-2038 0                       0                       1,292,000         452,398            

2039-2043 0                       0                       340,000            269,531            

2044-2048 0                       0                       397,000            212,938            

2049-2053 0                       0                       463,000            146,906            

2054-2058 0                       0                       516,528            69,844              

Total 56,000$            2,240$              4,949,528$       2,689,050$       

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

2028

2027

2026

2025

2024

 
 

 

 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

- 31 - 

 

NOTE 8 – COMPONENT UNIT CONTRIBUTIONS 

During the year, the City’s Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) and Downtown Development 

Authority (DDA) contributed the following amounts to support the City’s operations: 

LDFA: DDA:

General Fund General Fund

Salaries and wages 31,808$     Salaries and wages 30,071$     

Street light electricity 5,304         Parking Lot Maintenance 9,700         

Other 1,480         Capital Outlay 13,356       

Other 4,440         

Water Fund Debt Service Fund

Debt service 25,000       Bond payments 58,346       

     TOTAL 63,592$          TOTAL 115,913$   
 

 

NOTE 9 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

Vested or accumulated vacation days and sick leave that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available 

financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it.  

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements.  Employees 

of the City can accumulate vacation pay up to a maximum of 16 to 39 days depending on years of service, and 

employees have a vested right of 100% of allowable accumulated vacation pay upon termination.  Accumulated 

sick time is vested based on years of service and the vested amount is payable upon termination. 

 

NOTE 10 - SEGMENT INFORMATION 

The City issues separate revenue bonds to finance its water and sewer departments.  The fund financial 

statements report major funds with revenue - supported debt for the water and sewer funds.  Services provided 

by these funds are described in Note 1. 
 

NOTE 11 - PROPERTY TAXES 

Real estate and personal property taxes are recorded as revenue in amounts equal to the total taxes levied.  The 

total levy for 2022 was 16.388 mills. From this total, 4.6823 was transferred to the Local Streets Fund by vote 

of the City Council.  The 2022 total state taxable value was approximately $61,090,000 ($58,594,000 ad 

valorem and $2,496,000 industrial facilities tax).  City properties are assessed as of December 31 (the lien date) 

- taxes levied July 1 of the succeeding year and are due without interest to September 15.  After the final 

collection date, unpaid real property taxes are added to the county delinquent tax rolls.  Personal property taxes 

unpaid continue to be collected by the City Treasurer. 
 

NOTE 12 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN 

The City of Jonesville provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees through a defined contribution 

money purchase plan administered by the International City Managers Association Retirement Corporation 

(ICMA-RC).  All full-time employees are eligible to participate in the plan after 6 months of full-time service.  

Participants are vested incrementally, with full vesting after four years of continuous full-time service.  The City  

is required to contribute 5% of covered payroll.  If the employee makes a voluntary contribution of 5%, then the 

City contributes an additional 2%.  Employees hired after January 1, 2010, must contribute at least 5% to be 

eligible for the 5% employer match. 

 

 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

- 32 - 

 

NOTE 12 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN (continued) 

The activity in the plan for 2022-23 is as follows: 
 

Asset Value - June 30, 2022 2,272,555$    

Employer Contributions 42,279           

Employee Contributions 43,660           

Investment Gain (Loss) 264,400         

Distributions (11,442)          

Asset Value - June 30, 2023 2,611,452$    
  

 

NOTE 13 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions, employee 

injuries, as well as medical benefits provided to employees.  The City has purchased commercial insurance for 

each of these areas of risk and there have been no significant reduction in insurance coverages.  Settled claims 

have not exceeded the amount of insurance coverage for the current or the three prior years. 
 

NOTE 14 - UNEMPLOYMENT TAXES 

The City is a reimbursing employer to the Michigan Unemployment Insurance Agency and, as such, is 

responsible to pay the Agency for those benefits paid and charged to its account.  As of June 30, appropriate 

liabilities have been recorded for all claims paid by the Agency.  However, no provision has been made for 

future payments that might result from claims in process or not filed. 

 

NOTE 15 – FUND BALANCE CONSTRAINTS 

Fund balances have been constrained for the following purposes: 

General Major Local State

Fund Streets Streets Highway

Nonspendable: Inventory 3,640$        0$               0$               0$               

Prepaid Expenditures 19,760        0                 0                 0                 

Restricted: Streets 0                 713,383      747,149      19,013        
 

 

NOTE 16 – TAX ABATEMENTS 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures, requires 

the disclosure of tax abatement information about (1) a reporting government’s own tax abatement agreements 

and (2) those that are entered into by other governments and that reduce the reporting government’s tax 

revenue.  Disclosure of information about the nature and magnitude of tax abatements is intended to make these 

transactions more transparent to financial statement users. 
 

The City receives reduced property tax revenues as a result of Industrial Facilities Tax exemptions they have 

granted.  Industrial facility exemptions are intended to promote construction of new industrial facilities, or to 

rehabilitate historical facilities.  The property taxes abated for all funds under this program totaled $20,449.  
 

NOTE 17 – COMMITMENTS 

During the year, the City Council approved a project to mill and resurface Maumee Street south of US-12, along 

with replacement of deteriorated sidewalks and installation of ADA-compliant ramps (as needed).  The 

projected was substantially completed in August, 2023 at a total cost of approximately $714,000 ($415,602 in 

Federal grants and a City contribution of approximately $298,398). 
 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 

- 33 - 

NOTE 18 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 6, 2023, the date on which the financial 

statements were available to be issued. 
 

NOTE 19 – UPCOMING ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - an 

amendment of GASB Statement No. 62.  This Statement prescribes the accounting and financial reporting for (1) 

each type of accounting change and (2) error corrections.  This Statement requires that (a) changes in 

accounting principles and error corrections be reported retroactively by restating prior period, (b) changes to or 

within the financial reporting entity be reported by adjusting beginning balances of the current period, and (c) 

changes in accounting estimates be reported prospectively by recognizing the change in the current period.  The 

City is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted during 

the 2023-2024 fiscal year.   
 

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences.  This Statement requires that 

liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that has not been used and (2) leave that has 

been used by not yet paid in cash or settled through noncash means.  A liability should be recognized for leave 

that has not been used if (a) the leave is attributable to services already rendered, (b) the leave accumulates, and 

(c) the leave is more likely than not to be used for time off or otherwise paid in cash or settled through noncash 

means.  This Statement also establishes guidance for measuring a liability for leave that has not been used, 

generally using an employee’s pay rate as of the date of the financial statements.  The City is currently 

evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted during the 2024-2025 

fiscal year. 

 

 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

- 34 - 

Actual

Over (Under)

Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUE

Property Taxes 876,642$     876,642$      856,436$     (20,206)$      

Licenses and Permits 1,570           1,570            1,298           (272)             

State Shared Revenue 254,436       282,563        281,564       (999)             

Grants 115,921       0                   0                  0                  

Charges and Fees 87,250         87,250          105,170       17,920         

Recreation 22,500         26,500          33,983         7,483           

Rents and Royalties 25,000         25,000          24,260         (740)             

Cemetery Revenue 22,000         26,000          33,600         7,600           

Contributions 2,500           2,500            3,495           995              

Interest 500              500               91,215         90,715         

Contributions from Component Units 742,429       111,179        96,159         (15,020)        

Miscellaneous 285,000       0                   7,801           7,801           

Total Revenue 2,435,748$  1,439,704$   1,534,981$  95,277$       

EXPENDITURES

General Government

City Council 24,600$       29,100$        28,638$       (462)$           

City Manager 122,580       128,330        128,122       (208)             

Elections 5,956           9,456            8,151           (1,305)          

General Office 246,645       246,645        239,980       (6,665)          

Board of Review 875              875               779              (96)               

Treasurer 3,300           3,800            3,007           (793)             

Assessor 22,100         22,900          22,863         (37)               

Data Processing 15,625         15,625          14,039         (1,586)          

City Hall 18,027         26,427          26,046         (381)             

Cemetery 71,573         85,873          85,861         (12)               

Freedom Memorial 900              900               719              (181)             

Fringe Benefits 42,820         44,170          44,153         (17)               

Insurance 15,000         15,000          13,347         (1,653)          

Promotion 0                  100               93                (7)                 

Budget Amounts

 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

(continued) 
 

- 35 - 

Actual

Over (Under)

Original Final Actual Final Budget

Public Safety

Police 331,822       331,822        267,379       (64,443)        

Fire 145,340       142,840        140,808       (2,032)          

Economic & Community Development

Planning & Zoning 11,596         11,796          11,615         (181)             

Public Works

Parking Lots 14,490         14,490          9,678           (4,812)          

Sidewalks 1,430           20,180          18,750         (1,430)          

Other 18,520         24,720          23,802         (918)             

Streets, Highways, and Drains

Street Lighting 33,000         33,000          32,042         (958)             

Sanitation

Landfill 7,315           14,715          14,466         (249)             

Culture and Recreation

Recreation 43,612         44,712          44,437         (275)             

Parks 14,375         25,975          25,916         (59)               

Rail/Trail 13,445         13,445          7,662           (5,783)          

Capital Outlay 1,064,137    76,297          66,132         (10,165)        

Total Expenditures 2,289,083$  1,383,193$   1,278,485$  (104,708)$    

REVENUE OVER (UNDER) 

EXPENDITURES 146,665$     56,511$        256,496$     199,985$     

OTHER FINANCING 

SOURCES (USES)

Operating Transfers In 158,215$     158,215$      161,177$     2,962$         

Operating Transfers Out (388,000)      (296,000)      (279,448)      16,552         

Total Other 

     Financing Sources (Uses) (229,785)$    (137,785)$    (118,271)$    19,514$       

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (83,120)$      (81,274)$      138,225$     219,499$     

FUND BALANCES - Beginning 1,833,550    1,833,550     1,833,550    0                  

FUND BALANCES - Ending 1,750,430$  1,752,276$   1,971,775$  219,499$     

Budget Amounts

 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

MAJOR STREETS FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 
 

- 36 - 

Actual

Over (Under)

Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUE

State Shared Revenue 267,006$     267,006$     270,103$     3,097$         

Interest 500              500              23,894         23,394         

Grants 415,602       0                  0                  0                  

Miscellaneous 0                  0                  44                44                

Total Revenue 683,108$     267,506$     294,041$     26,535$       

EXPENDITURES

Street Construction 590,000$     55,100$       55,069$       (31)$             

Routine Maintenance 75,990         104,990       104,801       (189)             

Traffic Control 4,400           4,400           2,282           (2,118)          

Winter Maintenance 22,915         12,915         10,640         (2,275)          

Total Expenditures 693,305$     177,405$     172,792$     (4,613)$        

REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

 EXPENDITURES (10,197)$      90,101$       121,249$     31,148$       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In 82,120$       5,000$         0$                (5,000)$        

Transfers Out (13,228)        (13,228)        (13,228)        0                  

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 68,892$       (8,228)$        (13,228)$      (5,000)$        

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 58,695$       81,873$       108,021$     26,148$       

FUND BALANCES - Beginning 605,362       605,362       605,362       0                  

FUND BALANCES - Ending 664,057$     687,235$     713,383$     26,148$       

Budget Amounts

 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

LOCAL STREETS FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  
 

- 37 - 

Actual

Over (Under)

Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUE

State Shared Revenue 83,562$       83,562$       84,219$       657$            

Grants 0                  0                  0                  0                  

Interest 800              800              30,483         29,683         

Miscellaneous 0                  0                  909              909              

Total Revenue 84,362$       84,362$       115,611$     31,249$       

EXPENDITURES

Street Construction 841,285$     0$                0$                0$                

Routine Maintenance 123,970       131,970       126,112       (5,858)          

Traffice Control 2,234           2,234           2,103           

Winter Maintenance 18,480         18,480         11,137         (7,343)          

Administration 0                  20                19                (1)                 

Total Expenditures 985,969$     152,704$     139,371$     (13,202)$      

REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (901,607)$    (68,342)$      (23,760)$      44,582$       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bond Proceeds 500,000$     0$                0$                0$                

Transfers In 245,000       245,000       233,663       (11,337)        

Transfers Out (137,508)      (137,508)      (137,508)      0                  

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 607,492$     107,492$     96,155$       (11,337)$      

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (294,115)$    39,150$       72,395$       33,245$       

FUND BALANCES - Beginning 674,754       674,754       674,754       0                  

FUND BALANCES - Ending 380,639$     713,904$     747,149$     33,245$       

Budget Amounts

 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2023 
 

- 38 - 

Debt State

Service Highway

Fund Fund Total

ASSETS

Cash 0$                  20,491$         20,491$         

Due from Other Governmental Units 0                    0                    0                    

Total Assets 0$                  20,491$         20,491$         

LIABILITIES

Due to Other Funds 0$                  0$                  0$                  

Accounts Payable 0                    1,478             1,478             

Total Liabilities 0$                  1,478$           1,478$           

FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable 0$                  0$                  0$                  

Restricted 0                    19,013           19,013           

Committed 0                    0                    0                    

Assigned 0                    0                    0                    

Unassigned 0                    0                    0                    

Total Fund Balances 0$                  19,013$         19,013$         

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 0$                  20,491$         20,491$         

 



CITY OF JONESVILLE 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 
 

- 39 - 

 

Debt State

Service Highway

Fund Fund Total

REVENUE

State Highway Contract 0$                  28,787$         28,787$         

Contribution from Component Units 58,346           0                    58,346           

Interest Income 0                    2                    2                    

Total Revenue 58,346$         28,789$         87,135$         

EXPENDITURES

Streets, Highways, Drains

Routine Maintenance 0$                  15,535$         15,535$         

Traffic Control 0                    0                    0                    

Winter Maintenance 0                    7,677             7,677             

Debt Service

Principal 114,000         0                    114,000         

Interest 7,286             0                    7,286             

Total Expenditures 121,286$       23,212$         144,498$       

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (62,940)$        5,577$           (57,363)$        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating Transfers In 62,940$         0$                  62,940$         

Operating Transfers Out 0                    (2,792)            (2,792)            

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 62,940$         (2,792)$          60,148$         

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 0$                  2,785$           2,785$           

FUND BALANCES - Beginning 0                    16,228           16,228           

FUND BALANCES - Ending 0$                  19,013$         19,013$         



 

- 40 - 

 
 

479 E. CHICAGO STREET PHONE: 517-849-2410 
P.O. BOX 215 FAX: 517-849-2493 
JONESVILLE, MI 49250 www.baileyhodshire.com 

 

 
 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 

To the City Council 

City of Jonesville 

Jonesville, Michigan 

 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 

and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-

type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 

remaining fund information of the City of Jonesville as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related 

notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Jonesville’s basic financial statements 

and have issued our report thereon dated November 6, 2023. 

 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Jonesville’s internal 

control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Jonesville’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not 

express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Jonesville’s internal control. 

 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 

employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 

misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 

internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 

statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency, is a 

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 

important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 

paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 

material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify 

any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses 

may exist that have not been identified. 

http://www.baileyhodshire.com/


 

- 41 - 

City of Jonesville 

Page 2 

 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Jonesville’s financial statements are free of 

material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 

contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 

determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 

provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of 

our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 

Standards.   

 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 

the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 

compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 

Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not 

suitable for any other purpose. 

Bailey, Hodshire & Company, P.C. 
Jonesville, Michigan  

November 6, 2023 



Page 1 of 2 

 

2023-12 

 

CITY OF JONESVILLE 

COUNTY OF HILLSDALE 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

 

RESOLUTION – CHICAGO STREET (US-12) ROAD DIET 

 

At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Jonesville, County of Hillsdale, State of Michigan, held 

in City Hall in said City on the 15th day of November, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. 

 

PRESENT:   

 

ABSENT:  

 

The following resolution was offered by Councilperson _______________ and supported by Councilperson 

______________. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Jonesville and the Jonesville Downtown Development Authority (DDA) desire 

to improve the safety and accessibility of Chicago Street, US-12, through the core of Downtown Jonesville; and 

  

WHEREAS, there is strong evidence that reducing the number of vehicular travel lanes through 

Downtown Jonesville between Olds Street (M-99) and the Jonesville Middle School from five to three will 

improve both traffic and pedestrian safety; and 

 

WHEREAS, the DDA through its consulting engineers completed a traffic study of the proposed lane 

reduction including the development of a Synchro traffic model to compare current, proposed, and future traffic 

conditions; and 

 

WHEREAS, the study shows that increases in travel time will be minimal and that there will be 

benefits to traffic safety, pedestrian safety, and to Downtown parking conditions; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City and MDOT are partnering such that any unintended consequences of the lane 

reduction will be addressed collaboratively, including implementation of certain improvements needed for the 

Road Diet on a pilot basis; and 

 

WHEREAS, the study results and conceptual project plans have been posted for public review on the 

City website; and 

 

WHEREAS, the DDA hosted a public open house on October 30, 2023 to share study results and to 

obtain public input; and 

 

WHEREAS, the DDA reviewed the public input from the meeting and other communication efforts 

regarding the lane reduction and acted at their meeting on November 7, 2023 to recommend that the City 

Council support the proposed project. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the City Council supports the proposed 

lane reduction or Road Diet on Chicago Street (US-12) through Downtown Jonesville between Olds Street (M-

99) and the Jonesville Middle School. 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council requests that the Michigan Department of 

Transportation (MDOT) implement the lane reduction, or Road Diet, reducing the number of travel lanes on 

Chicago Street (US-12) from five lanes to three lanes, made up of two travel lanes and a center turn lane, when 

the next resurfacing occurs. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council requests that the additional space gained through 

the lane reduction by allocated to a buffered bike lane, used to improve use and access of the existing 

Downtown parking and that can also be utilized by bicyclists traversing the Downtown. 

 

AYES:   

   

NAYS:      

 

ABSENT:   

 

 

_____________________________________ 
Cynthia D. Means, Clerk 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Jonesville, County of Hillsdale, Michigan at a Regular Meeting held on the 15th day of 

November, 2023, and that public notice was given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as 

amended, including in the case of a special or rescheduled meeting notice by publication or posting at least 

eighteen (18) hours prior to the time set for the meeting. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 
Cynthia D. Means, Clerk 



MEMO

27725 Stansbury Boulevard, Suite 195

Farmington Hills, MI 48334
P: 248.536.0080
F: 248.536.0079

www.fveng.com
854740 Jonesville Road Diet Study - Public Hearing Summary

VIA EMAIL JGray@jonesville.org

To:
Jeffery M Gray
City Manager
City of Jonesville

From: Fleis & VandenBrink

Date: November 1, 2023

Re:
Public Hearing Comments 10/30/2023
Chicago Street (US-12), Road Diet Study
City of Jonesville, Michigan

The City of Jonesville Downtown Development Authority held a public hearing and open house on Monday, 
October 30, 2023, at the Jonesville Police Department located at 116 West Chicago Street, Jonesville, MI 
49250.  The public hearing was held as part of the consideration of the Road Diet for US-12/Chicago Street
in the City of Jonesville. 

Comments were provided at the public hearing on October 30, 2023.  Additionally, information discussed 
at the public hearing was also provided on the City website, and comments were provided via e-mail to the 
City.  The summary of the comments and the e-mail correspondence received are attached. 

A. PLAN SHEET COMMENTS

INTERSECTION: CHICAGO STREET/ WALNUT STREET/OLDS STREET (M-99)

1. Cost for changes, who bears the costs?
2. What additional traffic slowing mechanisms would there be?
3. Merge lanes on both ends of town – eliminated !"#$
4. Has increased commercial traffic been accounted for with Meijer opening new location 2 miles 

south?
5. Will need to improve “level of service” in morning and afternoon.
6. What if citizenry prefers no change – does MDOT preferences trump local preferences?

a. This is a horrible idea all the way around. The traffic in town is far more than the “fifteen 
minutes” a few times a day. I frequently am on call for my work 24/7 so I see what the 
traffic is like at totally random times of the day quite regularly. While the numbers may 
give Black & White Data, the numbers never give the whole story. The whole story 
resides in between the Black & White. With the opening of Meijer we are guaranteed to 
see even a route through town. I could go on a lot more, but I won’t. I will just say that this 
is perhaps the most idiotic proposal I have seen in the town, and anyone who backs this 
needs to travel a little more. Good lord. More traffic. Something doubt the “experts” took 
into consideration.



City of Jonesville | W. Chicago Street (US-12) | Public Hearing Comments
  November 1, 2023 │ Page 2 of 5 

 

 

854740 Jonesville Road Diet Study - Public Hearing Summary 

b. Both Quincy and Tecumseh have been cited as examples of recent “Road Diets”, yet 
neither of these towns have two highways through them. Let alone sharing. 

 

SHEET #1: TRAIL CROSSING, UDDER SIDE 

1. Please – No.  
2. Putting Ped crossing in here is a great thing. 
3. Pedestrian right of way. Will traffic be required to stop? 

 

SHEET #2: POLICE STATION, MCDONALDS 

1. Trucks/trailers turning left could be impacted with lane reduction and proximity to light. 
2. We, all manage, to drive through Quincy and Coldwater without any problems. I like the bike lane. 

Change is good.  
3. There would be nowhere to pass between Clinton and Coldwater. 
4. What data was used regarding bicycle traffic? Enough traffic to support the need for bike lanes.  
5. Wouldn’t there be more likelihood for traffic backing up for longer periods. 
6. Can there be grant money found to assist businesses to improve their back door access so back 

parking lot is a preferred option? 

7. Pedestrian Crossings – to be more than just at traffic lights? 

 

SHEET #3: WEST TO MAUMEE/EVANS 

1. Take out the center lane. Stay the 4 lane traffic 

2. Could curbs be redone to move parking closer to buildings. Reduce sidewalk width? 

3. Right turn lanes at Maumee/Evans 

4. Get rid of curb bump-out on Maumee Street. 
5. Dedicated right turn lanes. 
6. Remove curb, add righthand turn lane 

7. Remove curb, add righthand turn 

8. Traffic is backed thru town now with 2 lanes 

9. By increasing light time going east to west would cause locals to wait longer to get onto US-12.  
10. You will have traffic backed up because of the semi’s that can’t get up to speed in rush hour in the 

morning. 
11. Change is good. Open minds to the possibilities. Slow traffic down just a “little” bit for the masses! 
12. In the afternoon with school busses and the semi’s you are going to have one big traffic jam.  
13. What impact will the increase of Meijer traffic have the 99 & US-12 intersection.  
14. Communicate the actual car accidents from open doors US-12. 
15. Communicate number of bicyclists to justify the lane.  
16. Dedicate right turn lane East & Westbound US-12. 

 

SHEET #4: MAUMEE/EVANS TO WRIGHT 

1. Add traffic light 
2. Adding turn lane at each intersection Wright Street, Maumee Street, Evans Street, East Street, 

etc.  
3. Add traffic light 

 

SHEET #5: WRIGHT/EAST TO MIDDLE SCHOOL 

1. Driveway added to East Street, not grass.  
 

 

 



City of Jonesville | W. Chicago Street (US-12) | Public Hearing Comments
  November 1, 2023 │ Page 3 of 5 

 

 

854740 Jonesville Road Diet Study - Public Hearing Summary 

B. COMMENT CARD COMMENTS 
COMMENT CARDS 

1. For the most part it all looks great. I am a bike rider and like the bike lanes. Change is good.  
–Dave Bauer 

2. Consider “speed limit” flashing signs near city entrances/schools. 
3. Consider right turn lanes on all Northbound side streets. ESP Maumee, Fast St 
4. Wonderful “problem’ to have. 
5. It is a good idea, for the most part. Thank you for all your hard work! –Max Null 
6. This is great. Hope it happens. –David Windle 
7. Concerns about people who are handicapped get up to the curb and get to the business (two 

steps with handrail-mid street). Please look at. 
8. I strong suggest that solar powered speed check signs be placed on East Street now that it has/is 

designated a bus route to high school. The amount of speeding has drastically increased over the 
past 3 years. It would also keep traffic at all times under control. With it being a straight shot from 
high school to middle school or school admin building will control those speeding without put the 
burden on our limited police force. If the police force needs funds they could earn a lot from 
speeding tickets.  

C. E-MAIL COMMENTS 
E-MAILS 

1. Jonesville Road Diet 
 
My wife and I have been residents of jonesville for 5 yrs and have enjoyed the downtown section 
this entire time. After hearing this idea we have become deeply concerned. The idea of 
shortening US-12 will create more traffic issues and congestion. The effect of more congestion 
will create more wrecks and pedestrian injuries. It also limit the amount of vehicles stopping at the 
stores in the downtown district, due to les traffic flow.  Also the time we have lived here we don't 
see very many people biking so the use of a bike lane is a waste of tax payer money. Grants from 
the state is still taxpayer money. I also here a large problem with this and the oversized loads that 
come through the downtown area. Currently they can travel safely without the need to take up 
both lanes because the road is wide enough. With this proposed idea this will put the loads into 
the biking and turning lanes creating a risk for personal injury and vehicle wrecks. For example 
ritzcraft brings the houses through Jonesville all the time these house sections on average are 
between 14 to 18 feet wide and upto 72 feet long. As an employee there I know the dimensions of 
these. But they are not the only ones either, Ava homes also go through the downtown district 
and theirs are completed trailer homes and are on average wider that the ritzcraft homes. 
 
I believe if we can get the community together we can create a better Jonesville experience for 
those that live hear and visit here. If we can create better parks for our children and strive to grow 
more smaller business with vendor style events and more community events with the downtown 
businesses we can create a better Jonesville and create a path for the growth of jonesville. 
 
Thank You 
 
Fishy Fishaay 

2. City of Jonesville Re-imagination 
 
Hello City of Joneville leadership team, 
 
My name is Pablo. I used to live in Joneville and graduated from JHS but now am in the US Air 
Force and have lived in Europe for over 4 years. I was just back in Joneville visiting friends and 
speaking with kids at JMS and JHS about pathways to become aviators back in May and make it 
back every few years. 



City of Jonesville | W. Chicago Street (US-12) | Public Hearing Comments
  November 1, 2023 │ Page 4 of 5 

 

 

854740 Jonesville Road Diet Study - Public Hearing Summary 

Living in Europe, I have witnessed and experienced their way of life, specifically their 
infrastructure. Cities are very walkable, pedestrian and cycle friendly. There are far less parking 
lots littering the cities which make the cities more walkable and therefore safer. Public 
transportation is highly regarded and widely accepted. Roundabouts are used at nearly every 
intersection which increase traffic flow and prevent head-on collisions. Roads are not widened for 
more vehicles but instead are either removed or narrowed to prevent speeding and to create new 
bike lanes. Sidewalks are everywhere and are well connected to businesses and homes. People 
are always out in their downtown areas walking, shopping and socializing with others. There is a 
big sense of community. 
 
Coming back to Jonesville I see almost the complete opposite. It is a city full of roads, parking 
lots, spread out with the car being the center of attention and businesses being far from each 
other. Unfortunately, it also feels like it has almost sense of community. I'm sharing my opinion 
not because I want to lambast the city but because Jackson has the potential and ability to be so 
much more. SHello City of Jackson leadership team, 
 
I believe Jonesville can become a more attractive city. The downtown has made some progress 
but its potential is far from being met. 
 
I have attached 2 YouTube videos that I highly encourage you to watch. Both are US cities that 
are transforming the way they conduct their cities. I personally think it's a step in the right 
direction and I hope you all also agree. 
 
Fayetteville, AR: 
https://youtu.be/vUhOFUQDLQk 
 
Carmel, IN: 
https://youtu.be/SAqu5cBetkQ 
 

 Thank you for your time, 
 

Pablo Frias 
 

3. Jonesville bike lanes 
 
Me again, 
 
I commend the city in wanting to improve access for bikers very much. The proposed design 
makes it dangerous for bikers as they're squeezed between cars. Having to ride a bike between a 
car parked and flowing traffic is flat out dangerous and will not encourage many to ride therefore 
be a waste  of resources. Would you want to ride a bikes with your kids through the proposed 
bike lanes?.... probably not. 
 
Please take the time to watch another amazing video that showcases different types of bike lanes 
already implemented in the US with inspiration from European ones. 
 
https://youtu.be/p36skNda3KE?si=ethLkJvtVGbN05Vd 
 
Pablo Frias 

 

 

 

 



City of Jonesville | W. Chicago Street (US-12) | Public Hearing Comments
  November 1, 2023 │ Page 5 of 5 

 

 

854740 Jonesville Road Diet Study - Public Hearing Summary 

If you have any questions or need anything else, please do not hesitate to contact us. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

FLEIS & VANDENBRINK  

 
Julie M. Kroll, PE, PTOE   

Traffic Engineering│Group Manager, Associate 

Attachments: Plan Sheets 

Comment Cards 

E-Mails 



1

Jeff Gray

From: Wallace, Kelby (MDOT) <WallaceK@michigan.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, November 1, 2023 10:51 AM

To: Jeff Gray

Cc: Jeff Wingard; Julie M. Kroll; Rick Stout; don.toffolo@mac.com; Pittman, Jason (MDOT); 

Jacob Swanson; Leix, Tracie (MDOT); Lamb, Veronica (MDOT)

Subject: RE: Chicago Street (Jonesville) Road Diet - Revised FINAL Report

Attachments: M-50 Tecumseh resolution.pdf

Jeff, 

 

I thought the meeting also went well and you had a good turnout.  

 

Here’s a sample resolution that was used in Tecumseh that you can use as a template if you like. 

 

A couple other things that will also need to get moving forward if city council approves a resolution: 

 

1. Share the final council resolution and summary of  meeting comments with MDOT. (Jonesville) 

2. Update the TAP grant application with adjustments related to FY2025 construction funding, “quick curb”, 

adjusted pavement markings as part of the trial period (including potential curb & gutter bump outs at the end of 

the trial period).  (Jonesville) 

3. MDOT will submit the road diet material to our internal engineering operations committee for final approval. 

(MDOT) 

4. If TAP grant is conditionally approved, MDOT will begin the solicitation process to hire a consultant to complete 

the design phase for the TAP grant items, road diet, signal adjustments, resurfacing, etc. (MDOT) 

5. If TAP grant is conditionally approved, we anticipate design occurring sometime next year and into 

2025.  Construction is expected in 2026 (late FY2025 funding, but construction the next season). (MDOT) 

 

Thanks. 

 

Kelby Wallace, PE 

MDOT Jackson TSC Manager 

wallacek@michigan.gov 

517-643-1322 

 

From: Jeff Gray <JGray@jonesville.org>  

Sent: Tuesday, October 31, 2023 4:27 PM 

To: Wallace, Kelby (MDOT) <WallaceK@michigan.gov> 

Cc: Jeff Wingard <jwingard@fveng.com>; Julie M. Kroll <jkroll@fveng.com>; Rick Stout <rstout@fveng.com>; 

don.toffolo@mac.com; Pittman, Jason (MDOT) <PittmanJ@michigan.gov>; Jacob Swanson <jacobs@fveng.com>; Leix, 

Tracie (MDOT) <LeixT@michigan.gov>; Lamb, Veronica (MDOT) <LambV@michigan.gov> 

Subject: RE: Chicago Street (Jonesville) Road Diet - Revised FINAL Report 

 

CAUTION: This is an External email. Please send suspicious emails to abuse@michigan.gov 

 

Kelby, 

 

Thanks for a=ending last night and for helping to field ques@ons.  We felt like the turnout was great and we had some 

really good one-on-one conversa@ons.   



Page 1 of 2 

 

2023-13 

 

CITY OF JONESVILLE 

COUNTY OF HILLSDALE 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

 

RESOLUTION – MUTUAL AID BOX ALARM SYSTEM (MABAS) INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

 

At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Jonesville, County of Hillsdale, State of Michigan, held 

in City Hall in said City on the 15th day of November, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. 

 

PRESENT:   

 

ABSENT:  

 

The following resolution was offered by Councilperson _______________ and supported by Councilperson 

______________. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Jonesville has the authority to maintain and operate a fire department 

providing fire protection, fire suppression, emergency medical services, technical rescue, hazardous incident 

response, and other emergency response services (“Fire Services”); and 

  

WHEREAS, the Fire Services can be further improved by cooperation between political subdivisions 

during times of public emergency or disaster (“Incidents”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Constitution 1963, Article VII, Section 28, and the Urban Cooperation Act 

of 1967, Act 7 of the Public Acts of 1967, Ex. Sess., being MCL124.501, et seq. (the “Act”) permit a political 

subdivision to exercise jointly with any other political subdivision any power, privilege, or authority which such 

political subdivisions share in common and which each might exercise separately; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System (MABAS) is a mechanism that may be used for 

deploying personnel and equipment in a multi-jurisdictional or multi-agency emergency mutual aid response; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Jonesville desires to enter into an interlocal agreement to further improve Fire 

Services through the Hillsdale County MABAS Division 3109; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Jonesville desires to commit personnel and equipment to another party upon 

the request of another party if deemed reasonable; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Jonesville City Council finds it in the best interest of its citizens to enter into the 

Interlocal Agreement authorizing participation in the Hillsdale County MABAS Division 3109. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the City Council approves the Michigan 

Mutual Aid Box Alarm System (MABAS) Interlocal Agreement in connection with the City’s participation in 

the Hillsdale County MABAS Division 3109, and authorizes the Mayor to execute the same. 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

AYES:   

   

NAYS:      

 

ABSENT:   

 

 

_____________________________________ 
Cynthia D. Means, Clerk 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Jonesville, County of Hillsdale, Michigan at a Regular Meeting held on the 15th day of 

November, 2023, and that public notice was given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as 

amended, including in the case of a special or rescheduled meeting notice by publication or posting at least 

eighteen (18) hours prior to the time set for the meeting. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 
Cynthia D. Means, Clerk 



AMENDED MICHIGAN MUTUAL AID BOX ALARM SYSTEM ASSOCIATION 
AGREEMENT 

 
Effective Date: _______________ 

 
BETWEEN 

 
PARTICIPATING POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS AS SIGNATORIES 

TO THIS INTERLOCAL GREEMENT 
 

This Agreement is entered into between the participating units of local 

government “Parties” that execute this Agreement and adopt its terms and conditions as 

provided by law.   This Agreement supersedes any and all prior Agreements and 

amendments to the Michigan Mutual Aid Box Alarm System Association Agreement. 

WHEREAS, the Constitution of the State of Michigan, 1963, Article VII, Section 

28, authorizes units of local government to contract as provided by law; and,  

WHEREAS, the Urban Cooperation Act, of 1967, 1967 PA 7, MCL 124.501, et 

seq., provides that any political subdivision of Michigan or of another state may enter 

into interlocal agreements for joint exercise of power, privilege, or authority that 

agencies share in common and might each exercise separately; and,   

WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that it is in their best interests to enter 

into this Agreement to secure to each the benefits of mutual aid in fire protection, 

suppression, rescue and emergency medical assistance, hazardous materials control, 

technical rescue and/or other emergency support for an Emergency, Disaster, or other 

Serious Threat to Public Health and Safety; and,   

WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that it is in their best interests to form 

an association to provide for communications procedures, training, and other functions  

to further the provision of said protection of life and property during an Emergency,  

Disaster, or other Serious Threat to Public Health and Safety; and  



WHEREAS, the Constitution and people of the State of Michigan have long 

recognized the value of cooperation by and among the state and its political 

subdivisions; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

SECTION ONE 
 

Purpose 
 

It is recognized and acknowledged that in certain situations, such as natural 

disasters and man-made catastrophes, no political subdivision possesses all the 

necessary resources to cope with every possible Emergency, Disaster or Serious 

Threat to Public Safety, and an effective, efficient response can be best achieved by 

leveraging collective resources from other political subdivisions.  Further, it is 

acknowledged that coordination of mutual aid through the Michigan Mutual Aid Box 

Alarm System Association (MI-MABAS) is most effective for best practices and efficient 

provision of mutual aid.   

SECTION TWO 
 

Definitions 
 
The Parties agree that the following words and expressions, as used in this Agreement, 

whenever initially capitalized, whether used in the singular or plural, possessive or non-

possessive, either within or without quotation marks, shall be defined and interpreted  

as follows:  

A. “Agreement” means the MI-MABAS Agreement. 
 

B.  “Michigan Mutual Aid Box Alarm System” (“MABAS”) means a definite and 

prearranged plan whereby response and assistance is provided to a 



Requesting Party by an Assisting Party in accordance with the system 

established and maintained by MI-MABAS Members;  

C.  “Party” means a political subdivision which has entered into this 

Agreement as a signatory;  

D. “Requesting Party” means any Party requesting assistance under this 

agreement;  

E.  “Assisting Party” means any Party furnishing equipment, personnel, and/or 

services to a Requesting Party under this agreement;  

F.  “Emergency” means an occurrence or condition in a Party’s jurisdiction 

which results in a situation of such magnitude and/or consequence that it 

cannot be adequately handled by the Requesting Party and such that a 

Requesting Party determines the necessity of requesting aid;  

G.  “Disaster” means an occurrence or threat of widespread or severe 

damage, injury, or loss of life or property resulting from a natural or 

human-made cause, including fire, flood, snowstorm, ice storm, tornado, 

windstorm, wave action, oil spill, water contamination, utility failure, 

hazardous peacetime radiological incident, major transportation accident,  

  hazardous materials incident, epidemic, air contamination, or similar  

occurrences resulting from terrorist activities, riots, or civil disorders;  

H.  “Serious Threats to Public Health and Safety” means other threats or 

incidents such as those described as Disasters, of sufficient magnitude 

that the necessary public safety response threatens to overwhelm local 

resources and requires mutual aid or other assistance;  



I. “Division” means the geographically associated Parties which have been 

grouped for operational efficiency and representation of those Parties;  

J.  “Training” means the regular scheduled practice of emergency procedures 

during non-emergency drills to implement the necessary joint operations 

of MI-MABAS;  

K.  “Executive Board” means the governing body of MI-MABAS composed of 

Division representatives.  

L.  “Effective Date” means the date on which the Agreement is first filed with 

the Department of State, the Office of the Great Seal, and each county 

where Parties are located. 

M. “Special Operations Teams” means MI-MABAS recognized teams of 

personnel with the requisite training and skill for Hazardous Materials 

Response, Technical Rescue Response (including Strike Teams and 

Michigan Task Force 1) and Incident Management Teams.  

 

SECTION THREE 
 

Establishment of the Association, the Divisions 
 and Executive Board of MI-MABAS 

 
A. Establishment of the Association 

 
1. The Parties intend and agree that MI-MABAS is established as separate 

legal entity and public body corporate pursuant to the Michigan Urban 

Cooperation Act of 1967, 1967 PA, MCL 124.505(c) and this Agreement. 

2. Name of MI-MABAS.  The formal name of the Association is “Michigan 

Mutual Aid Box Alarm System Association”. 



3. Federal Tax Status.  The Parties intend that MI-MABAS and all Divisions 

shall be exempt from federal income tax under Section 115(1) of the 

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or corresponding provisions 

of any future tax code 

4. State and Local Tax Status.   The parties intend that the MI-MABAS and 

all Divisions shall be exempt from all State and local taxation including, but 

not limited to, sales, use, income, single business, and property taxes 

under the applicable provisions of the laws of the State. 

5. Title to MI-MABAS Property.  All property is owned by MI-MABAS as a 

separate legal entity.  MI-MABAS may hold any of its property in its own 

name or in the name of one (1) or more of the Parties or Divisions, as 

determined by the Parties. 

6. Principal Office. The principal office of the Association (“Principal Office”) 

shall be at such locations determined by the MI-MABAS Executive Board. 

B. Establishment of the Executive Board. 
 
An Executive Board shall be established to consider, adopt, and amend 

needed rules, procedures, by-laws and any other matters deemed necessary 

by the Parties.  The Executive Board shall consist of a member elected from 

each Division of MI-MABAS who shall serve as the voting representative of 

said Division of MI-MABAS matters, and may appoint a designee from his or 

her Division to serve temporarily in his or her stead.  Such designee shall 

have all rights and privileges attendant to a representative of the Division.  A 

President and Vice President shall be elected from the representatives of the 



Parties and shall serve without compensation.  The President and other 

officers shall coordinate the activities of the MI-MABAS Association.  

 

 

 

SECTION FOUR 
 

Duties of the Executive Board 
 

The Executive Board shall meet regularly to conduct business and to consider 

and publish the rules, procedures, and bylaws of the MI-MABAS Association, which 

shall govern the Executive Board meetings and such other relevant matters as the 

Executive Board shall deem necessary.  

SECTION FIVE 
 

Rules and Procedures 
 

Rules, procedures, and by laws of the MI-MABAS Association shall be 

established by the Member Units via the Executive Board as deemed necessary for the 

purpose of administrative functions, the exchange of information, and the common 

welfare of the MI-MABAS.  

SECTION SIX 
 

Authority and Action to Effect Mutual Aid 
 

A. The Parties hereby authorize and direct their respective Fire Chief or his or her 

designee to take necessary and proper action to render and/or request mutual aid 

from the other Parties in accordance with the policies and procedure established 

and maintained by the MI-MABAS Association. 



B.  Upon a Fire Department’s receipt of a request from another Party for Fire 

Services, the Fire Chief, the ranking officer on duty, or other officer as designated 

by the Fire Chief shall have the right to commit the requested Firefighters, other 

personnel, and Fire Apparatus to the assistance of the requesting Party. The aid 

rendered shall be to the extent of available personnel and equipment not 

required for adequate protection of the territorial limits of the Responding Party.  

The judgment of the Fire Chief, or his or her designee, of the Responding Party 

shall be final as to the personnel and equipment available to render aid.  

C. An authorized representative of the Party which has withheld or refused to 

provide requested assistance under this Agreement shall immediately notify the 

Requesting Party, and shall submit an explanation for the refusal.  

 
SECTION SEVEN 

 
Jurisdiction Over Personnel and Equipment 

 
Personnel dispatched to aid a party pursuant to this Agreement shall at all times 

remain employees of the Assisting Party, and are entitled to receive benefits and/or 

compensation to which they are otherwise entitled to under the Michigan Workers’ 

Disability Compensation Act of 1969, any pension law, or any act of Congress.  

Personnel dispatched intrastate to assist a party pursuant to this Agreement continue to 

enjoy all powers, duties, rights, privileges, and immunities as provided by Michigan Law. 

When Parties are dispatched pursuant to the Emergency Management Assistance 

Compact (EMAC), the Parties shall adhere to all provisions of the EMAC.  Personnel 

rendering aid shall report for direction and assignment at the scene of the emergency to 

the Incident Commander of the Requesting Party.  



SECTION EIGHT 
 

Compensation for Aid 
 

Equipment, personnel, and/or services provided pursuant to this Agreement, 

absent a state or federal declaration of emergency or disaster, excluding resources for 

Special Operations Teams, shall be at no charge to the Requesting Party for the first 

eight hours.  Any expenses recoverable from third parties shall be equitably distributed 

among Responding Parties.  Requests for a response from any MI-MABAS Special 

Operations Team may require full and complete reimbursement to the responding Team 

for all expenses, including but not limited to, expenses for equipment, personnel, 

management and administration and all other services provided at an incident.  The 

Executive Board shall adopt fee schedules that establish rates for Special Operations 

Team responses.  Nothing herein shall operate to bar any recovery of funds from any 

state or federal agency under any existing statues. The Parties reserve the right to 

waive any charges to a Requesting Party.  

SECTION NINE 
 

Insurance 
 

Each Party shall procure and maintain, at its sole and exclusive expense, 

insurance coverage, including comprehensive liability, personal injury, property 

damage, worker’s compensation, and, if applicable, emergency medical service 

professional liability, with minimum limits of $1,000,000 auto and $1,000,000 combined 

single limit general liability and professional liability.  The obligations of the Section may 

be satisfied by a Party’s membership in a self-insurance pool, a self-insurance plan, or 

arrangement with an insurance provider approved by the state of jurisdiction.  The 



Executive Board may require that copies or other evidence of compliance with the 

provisions of this Section be provided by the Parties to the Executive Board.    

SECTION TEN  
 

Liability 
 

Each Party will be solely responsible for the acts of its own employees, agents, 

and subcontractors, the costs associated with those acts, and the defense of those acts. 

The Parties shall not be responsible for any liability or costs associated with those acts 

and the defense of those acts for Parties outside of their political jurisdictions.  It is 

agreed that none of the Parties shall be liable for failure to respond for any reason to 

any request for Fire Services or for leaving the scene of an Incident with proper notice 

after responding to a request for service.    

  



SECTION ELEVEN 
 

No Waiver of Governmental Immunity 
 

All of the privileges and immunities from liability, and exemptions from laws, 

ordinances and rules, and all pensions, relief, disability, worker’s compensation and 

other benefits which apply to the activity of Parties, officers, agency, or employees of 

any public agents or employees of any public agency when performing their respective 

functions within the territorial limits for their respective agencies, shall apply to the same 

degree and extent to the performance of such functions and duties of such Parties, 

officers, agents, or employees extraterritorially under the provision of this Agreement. 

No provision of the Agreement is intended, nor shall any provision of this Agreement be 

construed, as a waiver by any Party of any governmental immunity as provided by the 

Act or otherwise under law.  

SECTION TWELVE 
 

Term 
 

A. The existence of MI-MABAS commences on the Effective Date and continues 

until terminated in accordance with this Section.   

B. Any Party may withdraw, at any time, from this Agreement for any reason, or for 

no reason at all, upon thirty (30) days written notice to the Association. The 

withdrawal of any Party shall not terminate or have any effect upon the provisions 

of this Agreement so long as the MI-MABAS remains composed of at least two 

(2) Parties.  Parties withdrawing from MI-MABAS and subsequently requesting a 

mutual aid resource from a MI-MABAS member may be subject to reasonable 

fees for that resource according to the fee schedule established, and periodically 

reviewed and updated, by the Executive Board.  



C.  This Agreement shall continue until terminated by the first to occur of the 

following:  

(i)  The Association consists of less than two (2) Parties; or,  
 

(ii)  A unanimous vote of termination by the total membership of the Executive 
Board.  

 
SECTION THIRTEEN  

 
Miscellaneous 

 
A. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between the 

Parties. The language of this Agreement shall be construed as a whole according 

to its fair meaning and not construed strictly for or against any party. The Parties 

have taken all actions and secured all approvals necessary to authorize and 

complete this Agreement.  

B. Severability of Provisions. If a Court of competent jurisdiction finds any provision 

of this Agreement invalid or unenforceable, then that provision shall be deemed 

severed from this Agreement.  The remainder of this Agreement shall remain in 

full force. 

C. Governing Law/Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement is made and 

entered into in the State of Michigan and shall in all respects be interpreted, 

enforced, and governed under the laws of the State of Michigan.  

D. Captions. The captions, headings, and titles in this Agreement are intended for 

the convenience of the reader and not intended to have any substantive meaning 

and are not to be interpreted as part of this Agreement.  



E. Terminology. All terms and words used in this Agreement, regardless of the 

numbers or gender in which they are used, are deemed to include any other 

number and any other gender as the context may require.  

F. Recitals. The Recitals shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement.  
 
G.  Amendment. The Agreement may be amended or an alternative form of the 

Agreement adopted only upon written agreement and approval of the governing 

bodies of all Parties.  Amendments to this Agreement shall be filed with the 

Department of State, the Office of the Great Seal, each county of the State where 

a Party is located, and any other governmental agency, office, and official 

required by law.  The undersigned unit of local government or public agency 

hereby adopts, subscribes, and approves this Agreement to which this signature 

page will be attached, and agrees to be a party and be bound by the terms.  

H.  Compliance with Law.  The Association shall comply with all federal and State 

laws, rules, regulations, and orders applicable to this Agreement.  

I. No Third Party Beneficiaries. Except as expressly provided herein, this 

Agreement does not create, by implication or otherwise, any direct or indirect 

obligation, duty, promise, benefit, right of indemnification (i.e., contractual, legal, 

equitable, or by implication) right of subrogation as to any Party’s rights in this 

Agreement, or any other right of any kind in favor of any individual or legal entity.  

J.  Counterpart Signatures. This Agreement may be signed in counterpart. The 

counterparts taken together shall constitute one (1) agreement.  

K.  Permits and Licenses. Each Party shall be responsible for obtaining and 

maintaining, throughout the term of this Agreement, all licenses, permits, 

certificates, and governmental authorizations for its employees and/or agents 



necessary to perform all its obligations under this Agreement. Upon request, a 

Party shall furnish copies of any permit, license, certificate or governmental 

authorization to the requesting party.  

L.  No Implied Waiver. Absent a written waiver, no fact, failure, or delay by a Party to 

pursue or enforce any rights or remedies under this Agreement shall constitute a 

waiver of those rights with regard to any existing or subsequent breach of this 

Agreement. No waiver of any term, condition, or provision of this Agreement, 

whether by conduct or otherwise, in one or more instances shall be deemed or 

construed as a continuing waiver of any term, condition, or provision of this 

Agreement.  No waiver by either Party shall subsequently affect its right to 

require strict performance of this Agreement.  

M.  Notices. Notices given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 

personally delivered, sent by express delivery service, certified mail, or first class 

U.S. mail postage prepaid to the person appointed to the governing board by the 

governing body of the participating agency.  

 

 _____________________________________  
Political Entity  
 
 _____________________________________  
Chief Executive Official  
          
 _____________________________________  
Date  
 



J:\City Manager\Depts and Capital Projects\Waste Water\MUA - Digester - 2023\Bid Tabulation.docx 

 

City of Jonesville 

Bid Tabulation 

 

 

Bid For:  Make-Up Air Unit - WWTP         

 

 

Bid Opening Date/Time:  November 7, 2023        

 

 

Staff Present:   Jeff Gray, Ed Hughes         

 

 Bidder Name Bid Amount 

1 Griffiths Mechanical $32,765.00 (specified unit) 

2 Griffiths Mechanical $26,526.00 (alternate unit) 

3 Refrigeration and Mechanical Services $22,579.00 

4 Ryan and Bradshaw $20,498.00 

5 Skyway $49,728.00 

6 Aker Mechanical $31,455.00 

7 Positive Trades Group $44,805.00 

8 Howell’s Mechanical Service, Inc. $30,220.00 (specified unit) 

9 Howell’s Mechanical Service, Inc. $21,113.00 (alternate unit) 

10   

11   

12 ** Unless otherwise noted, the bid amount listed is for   

13 the unit specified in the Notice to Bidders **  

14   

15   

16   

17   

18   

19   

20   

 



City of Jonesville 

Bid Tabula�on 

 

Bid For: Trash and Recyclables Collec�on   Bid Opening Date/Time: November 6, 2023, 2:00 p.m.  Staff Present: Jeff Gray and Lenore Spahr 

 

 Residen�al Collec�on Municipal Collec�on City-Wide Clean-Up 

Bidder Name Trash Recyclables 2-Yard Trash 4-Yard Trash 2-Yard Recyc. Misc. Cans Cost per Hour Cost per Ton 

Granger Waste 

Services 

$13.40/month $4.60/month $85.00/month $105.00/month Included – No 

Charge 

Included – No 

Charge 

$210 per truck/ 

hour – 1 associate 

$45/hour 

addi�onal 

associates 

$55/ton 

LRS of Jackson, MI $13.20/month $5.03/month $75.00/month $87.00/month $55.00/month Included – No 

Charge 

$200 per truck/ 

hour 

$65/ton 

         

** Each bidder proposes a five-year term, with various increases over the term.  Addi�onal services beyond those requested in the bids are also available.  Details are included in each proposal. 

 































































































































**Subject to Council Approval** 

 

 

JONESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

Minutes of October 18, 2023 

 

A meeting of the Jonesville City Council was held on Wednesday, October 18, 2023 at the 
Jonesville City Hall, 265 E. Chicago Street, Jonesville, MI.  Mayor Gerry Arno called the 
meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  Council members present were:  Tim Bowman, Brenda Guyse, 
George Humphries Jr., Delesha Padula and Andy Penrose.    Absent:  Chris Grider.  
 
Also present:  Manager Gray, Treasurer Spahr, WWTP Supt. Hughes, Officer Stolberg, Attorney 
Lovinger, Lisa Adair, Dorothy Pogats, Nancy Molinaro, Margaret Hughes, Dana Kyser, Jim 
Pogats, Mark Nichols, David Betts, Robert Eichler, and Scott Lucas.  
  
Councilmember Brenda Guyse led the Pledge of Allegiance and the moment of silence.  
 
A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by Andy Penrose to approve the agenda as 
presented.  All in favor.  Absent:  Chris Grider.  Motion carried.  
 
Public Comment:  Robert Eichler, Lisa Adair, Dorothy Pogats and Jim Pogats all spoke.   
 
A motion was made by Andy Penrose and supported by Delesha Padula to approve Resolution 
2023-10 – A Resolution of the City of Jonesville Honoring the Faithful and Dedicated Service of 
Robert Snow and Resolution 2023-11 – A Resolution of the City of Jonesville Honoring the 
Faithful and Dedicated Service of David Steel.  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes:  Tim Bowman, Brenda 
Guyse, George Humphries Jr., Delesha Padula, Andy Penrose and Gerry Arno.  Nays:  None.  
Absent:  Chris Grider.  Motion carried.  
 
Brenda Guyse made a motion and was supported by Tim Bowman to schedule a special meeting 
for Wednesday, November 1, 2023 at 6:30 p.m. to honor Robert Snow and David Steel, who 
have contributed to the improvement of the City of Jonesville.  All in favor.  Absent:  Chris 
Grider.  Motion carried.  
 
A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by George Humphries Jr. to extend Interim 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Superintendent appointment to Ed Hughes, allowing him the 
opportunity to take the B Wastewater Operators License Exam in the Spring of 2024.  All in 
favor.  Absent:  Chris Grider.  Motion carried.  
 
The Fiscal Year 2023-24 1st Quarter Budget Comparison was provided for review.   
 
The State Tax Commission recently completed its assessment roll and practices audit, and has 
found the city to be substantially compliant with State Law.  The report was provided for review.  
 



A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by Delesha Padula to approve the minutes 
of the regular meeting on September 20, 2023.  All in favor.  Absent:  Chris Grider.  Motion 
carried.  
 
Andy Penrose made a motion and was supported by Delesha Padula to approve the Accounts 
Payable for October 2023 in the amount of $108,010.21.  All in favor.  Absent:  Chris Grider.  
Motion carried.  
 
A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by Tim Bowman to receive and place the 
minutes of Region 2 Planning Commission – August 10, 2023, Downtown Development 
Authority – September 12, 2023 and Planning Commission – September 13, 2023 on file.  All in 
favor.  Absent:  Chris Grider.  Motion carried.  
 
Updates were given by Department Heads and Manager Gray.   
 
At 6:57 p.m. a motion was made by Tim Bowman and supported by Andy Penrose to move into 
closed session in accordance with the Michigan Open Meetings Act Section 8a, to consider the 
evaluation of Manager Gray, per his request.  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes:  Tim Bowman, Brenda 
Guyse, George Humphries Jr., Delesha Padula, Andy Penrose and Gerry Arno.  Nays:  None.    
Absent:  Chris Grider.  Motion carried. 
 
The meeting returned to open session at 7:51 p.m. 
 
The Personnel Committee recommended recognizing Manager Gray with “Outstanding 
Performance” over the term of the contract which expired on June 30, 2023, and recommended 
the following retroactive to July 1, 2023: 
 Extend the Employment Agreement term an additional five (5) years to June 30, 2028.  
 Provide a 5% cost-of-living increase to the annual base salary to $97,215. 

Increase the severance payment from six (6) months base salary and fringe benefits to 
nine (9) months.   
Increase the employer contribution to retirement from 5% to 7.5% of the Manager’s 
annual salary.   

Andy Penrose made a motion and was supported by Brenda Guyse to approve the above 
recommendation of the Personnel Committee.  All in favor.  Absent:  Chris Grider.  Motion 
carried.  
 
Updates were given by Council.   
 
Mayor Arno adjourned the meeting at 7:59 p.m. 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
__________________________________                          _______________________________ 
Cynthia D. Means      Gerald E. Arno 
Clerk        Mayor   



**Subject to Council Approval** 

 

JONESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

Minutes of November 1, 2023 

 

A special meeting of the Jonesville City Council was held on Wednesday, November 1, 2023 at 

the Jonesville City Hall, 265 E. Chicago Street, Jonesville, MI.  Mayor Gerry Arno called the 

meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  Council members present were:  Tim Bowman, Brenda Guyse, 

George Humphries Jr., Delesha Padula and Andy Penrose.    Absent:  Chris Grider.  

 

Also present:  Manager Gray, Treasurer Spahr, WWTP Supt. Hughes, Public Safety Director 

Lance, Public Works Supt. Kyser,  Margaret Hughes, Dana Kyser, Joe Sauter, Shelly Snow, 

Jennifer, Jacob and Grant Steel, Ray Leising, Rick Mahoney, Mike Smith, Don Germann, Craig 

Burlingame, Krystin Ryals, Brennon Mains, Jay Smith, Matt Dawson, Rick Schaerer, Michael 

Duffey, Joe Ruden, Charlie Spencer, Colleen Armey, David Windle, Don Toffolo, Mike Briggs, 

Phil Laske, JoAnn Ambs, Ryan Ambs, Vicki Arno, Bill and Kathy Adams, Carl Albright, Lois 

and Dennis Howard, David Betts, Steve Schaerer, and David and Sarah Pope.   

  

Councilmember George Humphries Jr. led the Pledge of Allegiance and the moment of silence.  

 

A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by Andy Penrose to approve the agenda as 

presented.  All in favor.  Absent:  Chris Grider.  Motion carried.  

 

Presentations of the Resolutions naming Industrial Parkway and Deal Parkway in honor of David 

Steel and Robert Snow were held.   

 

Mayor Arno presented Resolution 2023-11 – A resolution of the City of Jonesville Honoring the 

Faithful and Dedicated Service to David Steel for faithfully serving the Jonesville community 

through an array of community activities for numerous years, not the least of which is 45 years 

of service on the Village Council, City Council, Local Development Finance Authority, Planning 

Commission, and Downtown Development Authority.  David was instrumental in land 

acquisition and development of the Jonesville Industrial Park, leading the creation of jobs and 

tax base to the benefit of this community.  The City of Jonesville recognizes said contributions 

with the honorary street naming of Industrial Parkway to “Dave Steel Drive”.  Mayor Arno and 

the City of Jonesville offered David Steel sincere gratitude and its best wishes for continued 

success in all endeavors and its most heartfelt hopes for sustained good health and prosperity.   

 

Mayor Arno presented Resolution 2023-12 – A resolution of the City of Jonesville Honoring the 

Faithful and Dedicated Service to Robert Snow for faithfully serving the Jonesville community 

through an array of community activities for numerous years, not the least of which is 38 years 

of service on the Village Council, City Council, Economic Development Commission, Local 

Development Finance Authority, Planning Commission, and Downtown Development Authority.  

Robert was instrumental in land acquisition and development of the Jonesville Industrial Park, 

leading the creation of jobs and tax base to the benefit of this community.  The City of Jonesville 

recognizes said contributions with the honorary street naming of Deal Parkway to “Bob Snow 

Way”.  Mayor Arno and the City of Jonesville offered Robert Snow sincere gratitude and its best 



wishes for continued success in all endeavors and its most heartfelt hopes for sustained good 

health and prosperity.   

 

David and Bob both graciously thanked the City Council for this honor and also for everyone in 

attendance for personally sharing this evening with them.  Bob and Dave both shared stories 

from over the years prior to the development of the Industrial Park.   

 

At the request of David Steel, Manager Gray gave a brief update of the Industrial Park.   

 

Mayor Arno adjourned the meeting at 6:48 p.m. 

 

Submitted by: 

 

 

__________________________________                          _______________________________ 

Cynthia D. Means      Gerald E. Arno 

Clerk        Mayor   



INVOICE APPROVAL LIST

1/3Page: 11/09/2023
User: LSPAHR
DB: Jonesville

AmountDescriptionVendor

CITY OF JONESVILLE

11/16/2023

75.47 WWTP - CONVEYOR RENTALALL STAR RENTAL
634.70 WATER - COPPER LINEAMERICAN COPPER & BRASS, LLC
750.24 LOCAL/LONG DISTANCEAT&T

4,000.00 AUDIT FEEBAILEY, HODSHIRE & CO, PC
635.00 JPD/JFD/CITY HALL CLEANING SERVICESBAKER, VICKI/B & B CLEANING, LLC
285.00 STAFF ID/CLOUD SERVICESBERESFORD COMPANY
175.00 WATER - QA/QC TESTINGBIOLOGICAL RESEARCH SOLUTIONS
29.93 UB refund for account: 000870-01BOARDMAN CRAIG

393.74 JPD/MVP/WWTP - GASOLINEBRINER OIL CO., INC.
499.18 MVP - BULK TANK
99.79 JFD - GASOLINE

611.73 JPD/MVP/WWTP - GASOLINE
1,604.44 

877.00 ASSESSING SOFTWARE SUPPORT FEEBS&A SOFTWARE
3,441.67 CEMETERY MAINT/SEXTON SERVICESBUTTERS EXCAVATING & LAWN CARE, LLC

75.98 WALMART - OPERATING SUPPLIESCAPITAL ONE
211.97 WWTP - BOILER MOTOR REPAIRCEM SUPPLY, INC.

1,500.00 STRIPING NORTH/SOUTH PARKING LOTSCLAUS, DANIEL/DBA SOUTHERN MI SEALC
40.00 JPD/CITY HALL WINDOW CLEANINGCLEAR VIEW B.R. LLC

1,279.72 IRON REMOVAL PLANT ELECTRICITYCONSUMERS ENERGY
39.08 CEMETERY ELECTRICITY
41.87 JFD - EMERGENCY SIREN ELECTRICITY
28.79 CITY HALL THIRD FLOOR ELECTRICITY

175.09 CITY HALL ELECTRICITY
28.79 CITY HALL SECOND FLOOR ELECTRICITY
44.84 FREEDOM MEMORIAL ELECTRICITY

166.39 JPD ELECTRICITY
35.99 RADIO TOWER ELECTRICITY

125.95 JFD TRUCK BAY ELECTRICITY
59.78 JFD TRAINING ROOM ELECTRICITY

1,323.26 CITY-WIDE STREET LIGHT ELECTRICITY
1,321.30 CITY-WIDE LED LIGHT ELECTRICITY

429.88 DOWNTOWN/STREETSCAPE LIGHT ELECTRICITY
44.56 FAST PARK ELECTRICITY
34.32 WRIGHT ST PARK ELECTRICITY
33.22 100 DEAL PKWY SPRINKLER METER ELECTRICITY
31.54 500 IND PKWY SPRINKLER METER ELECTRICITY
29.20 598 IND PKWY SPRINKLER METER ELECTRICITY
37.24 DDA - METERED PARKING LOT LIGHT ELECTRICITY
27.57 DDA - UNMETERED PARKING LOT LIGHT ELECTRICITY

4,792.82 WWTP ELECTRICITY
80.56 WATER TOWER ELECTRICITY

102.71 DPW BUILDING ELECTRICITY
10,314.47 

270.00 JFD - TRUCK 532 PUMP TESTINGDEPENDABLE FIRE APPARATUS, LLC
1,852.52 TRUCK 532 REPAIRS

2,122.52 

315.28 JFD - 1" FORESTRY HOSEDINGES FIRE COMPANY
386.18 JFD - HOSE COUPLER

701.46 

591.48 WATER TOWER - INTERNET/CAMERA ACCESSDMCI BROADBAND, LLC
591.48 IRON REMOVAL PLANT - INTERNET/CAMERA ACCESS

1,182.96 

257.74 STREET SIGNS/SUPPLIESDORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC
457.00 WATER - SUPPLIESELHORN ENGINEERING COMPANY
15.99 ZOOM MEMBERSHIPFIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA

362.34 MEMBERSHIPS/CONFERENCES/SUPPLIES
378.33 

1,600.00 WWTP - IPP DEVELOPMENTFLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENG, INC.
987.69 JFD - TRUCK 535 OIL CHANGE/MAINTENANCEFLINT TRUCK SERVICE INC
434.20 JFD - GLASS REPAIRG & G GLASS, INC.
171.60 UB refund for account: 000380-03GRAJEK MICHAEL

22,250.00 DEMOLITION - 148 JERMAINEHANDY EXCAVATING



INVOICE APPROVAL LIST

2/3Page: 11/09/2023
User: LSPAHR
DB: Jonesville

AmountDescriptionVendor

CITY OF JONESVILLE

11/16/2023

9,818.00 WWTP - REGRIGERATED SAMPLERHESCO
200.00 JPD - 2023 RANGE FEEHILLSDALE CO SHERIFF DEPT
568.00 WATER CROSS CONNECTION PROGRAMHYDROCORP, INC
744.50 WWTP - VACTOR REPAIRSJACK DOHENY SUPPLIES, INC.
40.00 JPD - CAR WASHESJAX KAR WASH

463.06 SUPPLIES/REPAIRSJONESVILLE HARDWARE
51.80 CITY HALL WATER/SEWERJONESVILLE, CITY OF
41.82 DDA - DRINKING FOUNTAIN
75.52 JFD WATER/SEWER
51.80 JPD WATER/SEWER
51.80 DPW WATER/SEWER

177.91 WWTP WATER/SEWER
53.46 WRIGHT ST PARK WATER/SEWER

504.11 

416.25 LEGAL FEESLOVINGER & THOMPSON, P.C.
2,368.30 JFD - 1-3/4" FIRE HOSEMACQUEEN EMERGENCY
2,368.30 JFD - 1-3/4" FIRE HOSE

150.00 JFD - GAS METER TESTING
4,886.60 

464.28 DDA - LIGHT BULBSMCGOWAN ELECTRIC SUPPLY, INC.
416.00 WWTP - TESTINGMERIT LABORATORIES
558.41 WWTP GAS SERVICEMICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES
35.71 JPD GAS/HEAT SERVICE

108.05 IRON REMOVAL PLANT GAS SERVICE
37.96 JFD GAS/HEAT SERVICE
53.84 GAS LIGHT SERVICE
40.76 DPW BUILDING GAS/HEAT SERVICE
42.46 CITY HALL GAS/HEAT SERVICE

877.19 

3,379.42 MOWING/LEAF REMOVALMICHIGAN LAWN & LANDSCAPE
540.00 DPW/WWTP - CDL CONSORTIUMMICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 

1,020.00 WORK COMP AUDIT - ADD'L PREMIUMSMML WORKERS COMPENSATION FUND
282.00 WATER - SUPPLIESMUNICIPAL SUPPLY CO.
180.00 WATER - SUPPLIES

462.00 

167.88 CALCIUM CHLORIDENAPOLEON FEED MILL, INC
33.25 MVP - AUTO REPAIRSNORM'S AUTO-JONESVILLE

938.17 MVP - LEAF VAC REPAIRSNORTH EAST FABRICATION CO, INC
14,466.40 CRACK FILL  - MAJOR/LOCAL STREETSPAVEMENT SOLUTIONS, INC.

59.01 R2PC MEETING MILEAGEPENROSE, ANDY
198.00 ELECTION POSTAGEPETTY CASH
331.28 POSTAGE - WATER/SEWER BILLSPOSTMASTER
63.00 JFD - OFFICER UNIFORM SHIRTSPOWERS CLOTHING, INC.

2,161.05 JFD - TRUCK 532 TANKPRO-MEC ENGINEERING SERVICES, INC
137.57 WATER - SUPPLIESSHARE CORPORATION
161.80 WATER - SUPPLIES

299.37 

863.61 PUSH BACK DUMPSPARKS & SONS EXCAVATING, LLC
250.00 STAFF ID PHOTOSSPENCER, WINDY

35,532.39 MAUMEE ST RECONSTRUCTIONSTATE OF MICHIGAN
1,618.08 WATER - WATER SUPPLY ANNUAL FEE

37,150.47 

299.97 CITY HALL/JPD/WWTP/DPW - PAPER TOWELSULINE
(54.24)WWTP - UNIFORM RENTALUNIFIRST CORPORATION
40.24 WWTP - UNIFORM RENTAL
33.47 MVP - SHOP TOWELS
40.24 WWTP - UNIFORM RENTAL
40.24 WWTP - UNIFORM RENTAL
50.25 JPD/CITY HALL FLOOR MATS
33.47 MVP SHOP TOWELS
40.24 WWTP - UNIFORM RENTAL

223.91 

709.26 WWTP - SUPPLIESUSA BLUEBOOK



INVOICE APPROVAL LIST

3/3Page: 11/09/2023
User: LSPAHR
DB: Jonesville

AmountDescriptionVendor

CITY OF JONESVILLE

11/16/2023

138.90 WWTP - SUPPLIES
1,335.76 WWTP - OPERATING SUPPLIES

2,183.92 

100.00 MS EXCHANGE ONLINE - OCT 2023VC3, INC.
367.00 CITY HALL NETWORK SWITCH
94.00 MONITOR CABLES/LENORE'S COMPUTER

561.00 

25.00 DPW CELL PHONEVERIZON WIRELESS
321.32 JPD/DPW-CELL PHONES/RADIO TOWER/JPD/JFD-MODEMS

346.32 

5,756.03 MAUMEE ST RECONSTRUCTIONWOLVERINE ENG & SURVEYORS INC.

Total: 146,346.42 







 

MEETING MINUTES 

Region 2 Planning Commission - Full Commission 
Jackson County Tower Bldg. 
120 W. Michigan Ave. 
Jackson, MI 49201 
 
Thursday, September 14, 2023 

I. Call to Order – Chair Jancek called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m.  A quorum was present.   

Attendance: 

  Adams 
  Andrews 
 P Bair (E) 
  Beach 
  Beecher 
 P Beeker (E) 
  Blythe 
  Boggs 
  Bolton 
  Bush 
  Bussell 
  Calender 
  Camacho 
  Chamberlain 
  Collins 
  Cornish 
  Cousino 
  Cure 
 P Cure 
  David 
  Dillon 

P Donaldson (E) 
P Duckham (E) 
P Elwell (E) 
 Everidge 
 Gaede (E) 
 Gallagher 
 Gentner 
 Gould, J. 
 Gould, L. (E) 
 Greene (E) 
 Greenleaf 
 Griffin 
 Gross 
P Havican (E) 
 Hawkins 
P Hawley 
 Heath 
P Herlein 
P Jancek (E) 
P Johnson 
 Kastel 

 Keener 
 Keller 
 Koehn 
 Lammers 
 Lance 
 Linnabary 
 Miller 
P Minnick, Jr. 
 Mitchell 
 Montrief 
 Navarro 
 Nickel 
P O’Dowd 
P Overton (E) 
P Penrose (E) 
 Peters 
 Pixley 
 Root 
 Saenz 
P Schlecte (E) 
 Shaw 

P Shotwell (E) 
P Sigers (E) 
P Smith (E) 
P Snell 
P Southworth (E) 
 Sutherland 
 Swartzlander (E) 
 Teriaco 
P Tillotson (E) 
 Todd 
P VanDoren 
 VanWinkle 
 Votzke 
 Webb 
 Weir 
 Williams 
 Willis 
 Wilson 
 Witt (E) 
 

   Key: P = present  (E) = Executive Committee member 

Staff Present:  Brett Gatz, Jacob Hurt, Jill Liogghio, Zack Smith 

Others Present:   Charlie Briner, JCDOT; Angie Kline, JCDOT; Alex Masten, The Enterprise 
Group; Bret Taylor, JCDOT and Andrea Strach, MDOT  

II. Approval of the September 14, 2023 Agenda – The motion was made by Comm. Bair, 
supported by Comm. Duckham, to approve the September 14, 2023 agenda as pre-
sented.  The motion carried unanimously. 

Page 2



 

III. Public Comment – Chair Jancek requested public comment.  There was no public com-
ment. 

IV. Approval of the Full Commission Meeting Minutes for July 13, 2023 – The motion 
was made by Comm. Bair, supported by Comm. Penrose, to approve the Full Commission 
meeting minutes of July 13, 2023 as submitted.  The motion carried unanimously. 

V. Approval of Action Taken at the August 10, 2023 Executive Committee Meeting – 
The motion was made by Comm. Bair, supported by Comm. Duckham, to approve the ac-
tion taken at the August 10, 2023 Executive Committee meeting.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 

VI. Receipt of Treasurer’s Report of August 31, 2023 – A motion was made by Comm. 
Snell, supported by Comm. Duckham, to receive the August 31, 2023 Treasurer’s Report 
as presented.  The motion carried unanimously. 

VII. Approval of September 14, 2023 Submitted Bills – A motion was made by Comm. Bair, 
supported by Comm. Snell, to approve payment of the September 14, 2023 submitted 
bills.  The motion carried unanimously. 

VIII. Staff Progress Report for August 2023 – The August 2023 staff progress report was in-
cluded in the agenda packet. Mr. Hurt presented highlights from the staff progress report 
for the month of August.  Comm. Penrose asked when the City of Jonesville Recreation 
Plan will be completed.  

IX. Approval of Amendments to the JACTS FY 2023-2026 Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP) – The following amendments to the JACTS FY 2023-2026 Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP) were submitted by the Michigan Department of Transporta-
tion. 

 

Fiscal 

Year 

Job no. Phase County Project 

Name 

Limits Primary 

Work Type 

Project Description Federal 

Budget 

Federal 

Fund 

Source 

State 

Budget 

Local 

Budget 

Total 

Phase Cost 

Amendment Type 

2024 219197 CON Jackson I-94BL Louis Glick, 

Michigan to 

Cooper & 

Cooper, 

Washington 

to Michigan 

Road Capital 

Preventive 

Maintenance 

Concrete Pave-

ment Repairs and 

Joint Repairs 

$116,227 ST $25,773 $0  $142,000  Add 

2024 207396 PE Jackson, 

Ingham, Le-

nawee, 

Washtenaw 

Regionwide All trunkline 

routes of 

REGION2 

MPO 

Traffic Safety Permanent pave-

ment marking ap-

plication on Uni-

versity Region 

trunklines 

$5,184  HSIP $576  $0  $40,000  Budget 

2024 207396 CON Jackson, 

Ingham, Le-

nawee, 

Washtenaw 

Regionwide All trunkline 

routes of 

REGION2 

MPO 

Traffic Safety Permanent pave-

ment marking ap-

plication on Uni-

versity Region 

trunklines 

$671,328  HSIP $74,592  $0 $5,180,000  Budget 

2024 207406 CON Jackson, 

Ingham, Le-

nawee, 

Washtenaw 

Regionwide All trunkline 

routes of 

REGION2 

MPO 

Traffic Safety Pavement marking 

retro-reflectivity 

readings on Univer-

sity Region 

trunklines 

$2,592  HSIP $288  $0 $20,000  Budget 

2024 207397 PE Jackson, 

Ingham, Le-

nawee, 

Washtenaw 

Regionwide All trunkline 

routes of 

REGION2 

MPO 

Traffic Safety Special pavement 

marking applica-

tion on trunklines 

in University Re-

gion 

$2,592  HSIP $288  $0 $20,000  Delete 

Page 3



 

2024 207397 CON Jackson, 

Ingham, Le-

nawee, 

Washtenaw 

Regionwide All trunkline 

routes of 

REGION2 

MPO 

Traffic Safety Special pavement 

marking applica-

tion on trunklines 

in University Re-

gion 

$73,872  HSIP $8,208  $0 $570,000  Delete 

 The motion was made by Comm. Snell, supported by Comm. Schlecte, to approve the TIP 
amendments presented by the Michigan Department of Transportation.  The motion car-
ried unanimously. 

X. Approval of 2050 LRTP Draft Plan – Brett Gatz stated the draft LRTP plan was ready for 
public comment.  Motion was made by Comm. Schlecte, supported by Comm. Snell to ap-
prove the draft LRTP plan.  The motion carried unanimously. 

XI. Approval of the FY 2024 R2PC Planning Work Program – Mr. Hurt presented the FY 
2024 R2PC Planning Work Program for approval.  Motion was made by Comm. Smith, 
supported by Comm. Snell to approve the FY 2024 R2PC Planning Work Program.  The 
motion carried unanimously.  

XII. Approval of the FY 2024 Regional Transportation Planning Work Program – Mr. Hurt 
presented the FY 2024 Regional Transportation Planning Work Program for approval.  
Motion was made by Comm. Schlecte, supported by Comm. Snell to approve the FY 2024 
Regional Transportation Planning Work Program.  The motion carried unanimously.  

XIII. Other Business – Comm. Elwell expressed a desire to begin discussion regarding 
monthly Full Commission meetings in place of the current structure of alternating months 
of Full Commission and Executive Committee meetings.  Discussion will continue over the 
course of the coming months.   

XIV. Public Comment / Commissioners’ Comments – Comm. Cure discussed a zoning is-
sue regarding residential non-conforming uses in the commercial zoning district of the Vil-
lage of Cement City.     

XV. Adjournment – There being no further business, Chair Jancek adjourned the meeting at 
2:47 p.m. 

  
Alan Beeker 
Secretary 

Page 4



10/12/2023 R2PC Executive Committee Meeting 1 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

Region 2 Planning Commission – Executive Committee 
Lenawee District Library  
4459 W. US 223  
Adrian, MI 49221 
 
Thursday, October 12, 2023 

 

I. Call to Order – Chair Pete Jancek called the meeting to order at 2:08 PM.  A quorum was pre-
sent.   

Attendance: 

  P Bair 
  P Beeker 
  P Donaldson 
  P Duckham 
      Elwell  

     Gaede 
     Gould 
     Greene 
     Havican 
  PJancek 

     Overton 
 P Penrose 
     Schlecte 
     Shotwell 
     Sigers 

     Southworth 
 P Swartzlander 
 P Tillotson 
 P Witt 

      Key: P = present    

Staff Present:  Zack Smith 

Others Present:   Jon Dowling, City of Jackson; Dustin Krasny, Rep. Tim Walberg’s Office; Ed 
Planeta, Jackson County; Jim VanDoren, Lenawee County 

A. A Moment of Silence was observed for Jacob Hurt and the passing of his daughter.  

II. Approval of the October 12, 2023 Agenda – The motion was made by Comm. Bair, sup-
ported by Comm. Duckham, to approve the October 12, 2023 agenda.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 

III. Public Comment – Dustin Krasny, District Director for Rep. Tim Walberg spoke about 
how Rep. Walberg is working for the district. He mentioned the crisis in the Middle East, 
support for technical education, and reducing the costs of higher education. He also men-
tioned that there would be upcoming town halls. 

Page 5



10/12/2023 Executive Committee Meeting 2 

 

IV. Approval of the Executive Committee Meeting Minutes for August 10, 2023 – The 
motion was made by Comm. Bair, supported by Comm. Duckham, to approve the Execu-
tive Committee meeting minutes of August 10, 2023 as submitted.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 

V. Receipt of Treasurer’s Report of September 30, 2023 – A motion was made by Comm. 
Duckham, and supported by Comm. Bair, to receive the September 30, 2023 Treasurer’s 
Report as presented.  The motion carried unanimously. 

VI. Approval of October 12, 2023 Submitted Bills – A motion was made by Comm. Pen-
rose supported by Comm. Swartzlander, to approve payment of the October 12, 2023 
submitted bills.  The motion carried unanimously. 

VII. Staff Progress Report for September 2023 – The September 2023 staff progress report 
was included in the agenda packet. 

VIII. Approval of Amendments to the JACTS FY 2023-2026 Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP) – The following amendments to the JACTS FY 2023-2026 Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP) were submitted by the City of Jackson: 

 
Fiscal 
Year 

 
Job no. 

 
Street 

 
Description 

 
Length 

 
Funding 

 
Action 

2024 216546 MLK Equality Trail 
Prospect St. to MLK Jr. Dr. 

Reconstruct existing 8 ft. wide 
asphalt pathway with a 12 ft. 
wide concrete non-motorized 
pathway 

0.55 Federal (SRTS)  $375,000 
City (original amt) $123,000 
City (new amt)   $284,929 
 

Change 

2024 216641 Elm Ave from North St to Flo-
ral Ave 

Reconstruct asphalt 0.334 Federal (SRTS)    $329,600 
City (original amt) $82,400 
City (new amt)   $304,634 
 

Change 

2024 216642 High St from South St to Ex-
ecutive Dr 

Crush and shape with asphalt 
resurfacing 

0.631 Federal (SRTS)  $398,400 
City (original amt) $99,600 
City (new amt)   $215,476 
 

Change 

2025 ____ MLK Jr Dr  
 
 
South Street to Morrell Street 

Reconstruction including modifi-
cation from a three lane cross-
section with one parking lane to 
a two lane cross-section with 
parking on both sides, installa-
tion of a ten foot shared use 
path, sidewalk reconstruction, 
installation of bump-outs at all 
local street intersections, turning 
lanes and new signals, new 
street lighting, tree planting, 
stormwater infrastructure and 
other street improvements 

0.979 RAISE   $6,785,245 
City     $753,916 

Add 

2025 ____ STR 4536 
 
E. High St. over Grand River 

Epoxy overlay on deck surface, 
reseal end joints, substructure 
patching, penetrating sealer on 
abutments, and channel 
cleanout 

 
 

--- 
 

State/Federal    $58,900 
City                    $  3,100 

Add 

2025 ____ STR 4538 
 
E. Morrell over Grand River 

HMA overlay on deck surface, 
barrier wall patching, reseal end 
joints, approach pavement re-
surfacing, approach curb and 
gutter, substructure patching, 
penetrating sealer on abutments 
and channel cleanout 

 
 

--- 
 

State/Federal    $150,000 
City                    $  7,900 

Add 

2025 ____ STR 4547 
 
Losey Ave. over Grand River 

Epoxy overlay on deck surface, 
barrier wall patching, reseal end 
joints, penetrating sealer on 
abutments and channel cleanout 

 
 

--- 
 

State/Federal    $35,150 
City                    $  1,850 

Add 

Page 6



10/12/2023 Executive Committee Meeting 3 

 

The following amendments to the JACTS FY 2023-2026 Transportation Improvement Pro-
gram (TIP) were submitted by the Jackson Area Transportation Authority: 

 

Fiscal 
Year 

Project 
Name 

Limits Primary 
Work Type 

Project Descrip-
tion 

Federal Cost Federal 
Funding 
Source 

State 
Cost 

Total Project Cost 

2023 

 
219442 

Area 
Wide 

SP 1809 - 
safety   FY 2023 

Safety 
$17,258 5307 $4,315 $21,573 

2024 

 
216557 

County-
wide 

Operating 

FY 2024 
Operating 

$40,363 5311 $40,363 $80,726 

 The motion was made by Comm. Duckham, supported by Comm. Bair to approve the TIP 
amendments presented by the City of Jackson and the Jackson Area Transportation Au-
thority. The motion carried unanimously.  

IX. Other Business – December 14, 2023 Executive Committee Date Change. Tabled until 
further information as to why is provided. 

X. Public Comment / Commissioners’ Comments – Chair Jancek noted that there was a 
lot of construction and told everyone to be safe while driving. Comm. Penrose noted that a 
new Meijer and new apartments were going up in Hillsdale to be opened in 2024. 

XI. Adjournment – There being no further business, Chair Jancek adjourned the meeting at 
2:22 p.m. 

  
 
Alan Beeker 
Secretary 

Page 7



Jonesville Police Department 
116 West Chicago Road 

Jonesville, Michigan. 49250 
 

911 Police Service Administration (517) 849-2101  FAX (517) 849-2520 

 

 

 

ACTIVITY SUMMARY FOR OCTOBER 2023 

 

Total reports written:  38 

Assault and Battery: 3 

Break and Enter: 0 

Larceny from Building: 0 

Theft from Motor Vehicle: 1 

Fraud: 1 

Damage to Property: 0 

Larceny- Other: 1 

Non-Violent Domestic: 0 

Retail Fraud: 0 

Natural Death: 0 

Accidental Firearm Discharge: 0 

Obstructing Justice: 2 

Public Roadway Accidents: 4 

Private Property Accidents: 1 

Other Arrests:  3 (warrants, traffic-DWLS/Revoked, etc.) 

Civil Matter/Family Disputes: 7 

Medical Emergency: 3 

Open Door: 2 

Ordinance Violation: 1 

Juvenile Runaway: 0 

Suspicious Situations: 4 

Lost and Found Property: 0 

General Assistance: 6 

Traffic/Moving Violations: 8 

Juvenile Petitions: 0 

Warrants Received from Prosecutor: 2 

 



114 W. Chicago St.

Jonesville, MI 49250

(517) 849-2101

(517) 849-2520 Fax

Run Members Date Type of call Location City Fayette Scipio Mutual Training

186 9 10/1/2023 Trainings Landing Zone Training Sta 4 X

187 4 10/5/2023 PI Accident Milnes Rd and Ball Rd X

188 7 10/6/2323 Assist Medical 301 Clinton st X

189 9 10/11/2023 Trainings Industrial Park X

190 6 10/12/2023 Assist Medical 1411w hastings lake rd X

191 8 10/13/2023 Community Service / Public RelationsWlliams Elementary School X

192 5 10/20/2023 Vehicle Fire 240 E. Chicago X

193 7 10/25/2023 Sta 5 Equipment InspectionsStaion 5 X

194 7 10/29/2023 Work Detail Station 5 X

195 2 10/29/2023 Meeting Sta 4 Training room X

Monthly Calls
City Fayette Scipio Mutual Training

City Fayette Scipio Mutual January 2 3 1 12 3

76 43 17 35 Febuary 18 4 4 8 2

Training March 3 2 1 2 2

24 April 8 10 2 1 2

May 8 2 1 3 4

June 12 9 2 2 1

Total for October 10 July 12 2 2 3 1

Total for the Year 195 August 10 5 0 1 1

September 1 5 3 3 2

October 2 1 1 0 6

November

December

Year Total Type of Call

Runs for the October



 

 

 

MONTHLY OPERATING REPORT 

October 2023 
 

SUBMITTED: November 8, 2023      

 

WATER FLOW    WASTEWATER FLOW 

MAXIMUM  330,000  MAXIMUM  260,600 

MINIMUM  118,000  MINIMUM  220,500 

AVERAGE  180,000  AVERAGE  241,000 

TOTAL  5.593 MG  TOTAL  7.4721 MG 

 

CALLOUTS:  None 

 

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

 

The plant was in compliance with the NPDES permit limitations during the month of  

October 2023.  Starting in May and lasting through September the discharge limits on 

compatible pollutants imposed by Michigan EGLE are stricter because of possible bodily 

contact and differing aquatic conditions in the receiving stream.  In October 2023 the 

Wastewater Plant met the summer limits for discharge. 

 

The Wastewater Plant Laboratory processed 151 Bacteria tests, 26 Nitrate tests and 14 

Nitrite tests in September.  The annual totals through October 2023 are as follows: 

 Total Coliform Bacteria-----1,256 

 Nitrates------------------------234 

 Nitrites------------------------111 

 

Plant Staff with assistance from the DPW Staff replaced the sand and anthracite I n the 

number one pressure filter.  The filter had been taken out of service this past summer to 

make some rather extensive repairs to the air scour system.  The filter is currently 

operating properly. 

 

Biotech Agronomics injected 170,000 gallons of treated digested biosolids to area 

farmland.  The remaining 65,000 to 75,000 gallons will be blended in order to meet State 

limits for nickel. 

 

 

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

5-Day Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

NPDES Permit 30 Day Average Limit is 4 mg/l 

NPDES Permit Daily Maximum is 10 mg/l  

The BOD-5 test tells us how much of the oxygen in the water is being used up or 

demanded by the waste in the water.  High oxygen demand will deplete the oxygen in the 

receiving water.  This will have adverse effects on the quality of life (fish) in the  

Receiving stream. 

Jonesville Monthly Average—1.8 mg/l    

Average Percent Removal from the Raw Wastewater—99.0 % 

Daily Maximum—4 mg/l 

 

Total Suspended Solids 

NPDES Permit Limit is 20 mg/l 

Suspended solids are very important in controlling the process in the plant.  Suspended 

solids are removed via settling clarifiers and are pumped to the anaerobic digester for 

treatment.  The digested biosolids are applied to farmland at agronomic rates as fertilizer. 

Jonesville Monthly Average—1.7 mg/l 

Average Percent Removal from the Raw Wastewater—99.0% 

 

Total Phosphorus 

NPDES Permit Limit 1 mg/l Year Round 

Phosphorus is a nutrient that promotes growth.  In fact, farmers use phosphorus as a 

fertilizer on crop lands.  Phosphorus is found in many cleaning agents and industrial 

processes.  Excessive phosphorus in wastewater promotes the excessive growth of micro 

and macro-organisms in the receiving stream.  In other words, phosphorus promotes 

excessive growth of algae and seaweed.  These plants demand oxygen from the water and 

tend to decrease the quality of life in the receiving stream. 

Jonesville Monthly Average—0.50 mg/l 

Average Percent Removal from the Raw Wastewater—90.0% 

 

Ammonia Nitrogen 

Monthly Average Limit is 0.5 mg/l 

Daily Maximum Limit is 2.0 mg/l 

Ammonia Nitrogen is the result of bacterial decomposition of organic nitrogen. Examples 

Of organic nitrogen include animal and plant protein, amino acids and urea from urine.  

Ammonia nitrogen is a very unstable form of nitrogen.  In wastewater plants ammonia 

nitrogen is oxidized to form nitrite nitrogen.  Further oxidation of nitrite nitrogen will 

form the stable compound called nitrate nitrogen.  This process is called nitrification and 

occurs in the trickling filter towers.  If nitrification does not occur in the treatment plant, 

it will occur in the receiving stream once again depriving oxygen from the aquatic 

population.  Because of the sensitive nature of the microorganisms involved in the 

nitrification process, the ammonia nitrogen limits are about the hardest to hit. 

Jonesville Monthly Average—0.054 mg/l 

Average Percent Removal from the Raw Wastewater—99.8% 

Jonesville Daily Maximum—0.293 mg/l  

 

Ed Hughes 

 



 

   Jonesville Dept of Public Works
 October 2023

   Monthly Report

Maintenance Salt Chloride Top Dirt COLD MIX

0 HR DT

STATE HIGHWAYS 0 HR OT 0 Ton 0 Bag 0 Yd 0 Ton

0 HR DT

MAJOR STREETS 0 HR OT 0 Ton 0 Bag 0 Yd 0 Ton

0 HR DT

LOCAL STREETS 0 HR OT 0 Ton 0 Bag 0 Yd 0 Ton

 0 HR DT

PARKING LOTS 0 HR OT 0 Ton 0 Bag 0 Ton

POLICE STATION 0 HR OT 0 Ton 0 Bag

FIRE DEPARTMENT 0 HR OT 0 Ton 0 Bag

DDA SIDEWALKS 0 HR OT

LDFA 0 HR OT 0 Ton

0 HR DT

WATER 0 HR OT         0 Yd 0 Ton

State Police 0 HR DT 0 Ton 0 Bag

There were no call outs.

We have been doing the weekly brush collection.

The Rail Trail was mowed.

We have been painting fire hydrants.

Fire hydrants were flushed.

We installed a new fire hydrant on Wright Street as the old one broke.

We helped the sewer plant install sand in one of there filter tanks.

We have been doing maintenance on the equipment.

The Wright Street bathrooms and the drinking fountain in Fast Park were winterized.

The Cemetery water was winterized.

The leaf vac and truck are ready for leaf season.

Mike Kyser



 

  



CITY OF JONESVILLE

CASH BALANCES

October-2023 BANK BALANCE

GENERAL FUND:

General Fund Checking 101-000-001 0.00

General Fund ICS 101-000-002 71,890.36

General Fund CLASS Acct 101-000-007 2,063,995.97

General Fund Cemetery CLASS Acct 101-000-007.100 98,819.61

General Fund Alloc of Assets CLASS 101-000-007.200 438,995.72

MAJOR STREETS:

Major Streets Now Checking 202-000-001 39,242.75

Major Streets CLASS Acct 202-000-007 581,239.67

LOCAL STREETS:

Local Streets Now Checking 203-000-001 37,242.03

Local Streets CLASS Acct 203-000-007 980,360.44

STATE HIGHWAY:

State Highway Now Checking 211-000-001 19,716.22

L.D.F.A.:

LDFA Operating Now Checking 247-000-001 3,310.40

LDFA Operating CLASS Acct 247-000-007 3,017,725.33

D.D.A.:

DDA Now Checking 248-000-001 6,329.56

DDA Operating CLASS Acct 248-000-007 82,883.34

SEWER FUND:

Sewer Receiving Now Checking 590-000-001 102,610.96

Sewer Bond & Interest Checking 590-000-001.300 10.00

Sewer Receiving CLASS Acct 590-000-007 281,392.93

Sewer Plant Improv. CLASS Acct 590-000-007.200 1,373,069.72

WATER FUND:

Water Receiving Now Checking 591-000-001 63,680.78

Water Receiving CLASS Acct 591-000-007 317,826.22

Water Plant Improvement CLASS Acct 591-000-007.100 408,561.28

Water Bond Reserve CLASS 591-000-007.200 51,354.19

Water RR&I Reserve CLASS 591-000-007.250 43,145.79

Water Tower Maint CLASS Acct 591-000-007.300 55,389.89

Water Maint CLASS Acct 591-000-007.400 84,588.61

MOTOR VEHICLE POOL:

Motor Vehicle Pool Now Checking 661-000-001 1,496.94

Equip. Replace CLASS - Police Car 661-000-007.301 43,114.65

Equip. Replace CLASS - Fire Truck 661-000-007.336 32,056.45

Equip. Replace CLASS - DPW Equip 661-000-007.463 -9,448.15

Equip. Replace CLASS - WWTP/Vactor 661-000-007.590 55,571.99

CURRENT TAX:

Current Tax Checking 703-000-001 115.99

Current Tax Savings Account 703-000-002 113,252.86

PAYROLL FUND CHECKING: 750-000-001 12,704.76

Lenore\Monthly\Interest and Cash Balances - MMYY.xls GRAND TOTAL 10,472,247.26




	Agenda 11-15-23.pdf (p.1-2)
	Memo 11-15-23.pdf (p.3-5)
	6A-Heritage Association YAC Request.pdf (p.6)
	6B-Audit Report.pdf (p.7-47)
	6C-Resolution 2023-12 - Road Diet.pdf (p.48-49)
	6C-Open House Summary.pdf (p.50-54)
	6C-MDOT Email.pdf (p.55)
	6D-Resolution 2023-13 - MABAS.pdf (p.56-57)
	6D-MABAS Interlocal Agmt.pdf (p.58-70)
	6E-Bid Tabulation - WWTP.pdf (p.71)
	6F-Bid Tabulation - Waste.pdf (p.72)
	6F-Granger Proposal.pdf (p.73-107)
	6F-LRS Proposal.pdf (p.108-129)
	6G-Maumee St Invoice.pdf (p.130-131)
	6H-CVTRS Form.pdf (p.132-134)
	7A-Minutes-10-18-23.pdf (p.135-136)
	7C-Minutes-11-01-23.pdf (p.137-138)
	8A-Accts Payable - Nov.pdf (p.139-141)
	9A-EDP Minutes - 07-20-23.pdf (p.142-143)
	9B-R2PC Minutes - 09-14-23.pdf (p.144-146)
	9C-R2PC Minutes - 10-12-23.pdf (p.147-149)
	10A-Public Safety Report - Oct.pdf (p.150-151)
	10B-WWTP Report - Oct.pdf (p.152-153)
	10C-DPW Report - Oct.pdf (p.154-155)
	10D-Cash Report - Oct.pdf (p.156)
	C1-Bob Snow - Thank you.pdf (p.157)

